Public Document Pack

People and Health Overview Committee
Date:
Time:
Venue:

Thursday, 24 March 2022
10.00 am
Council Chamber, County Hall, Dorchester, DT1 1XJ

Members (Quorum: 3)
Mike Parkes (Chairman), Pauline Batstone (Vice-Chairman), Rod Adkins, Tony Alford,
Pete Barrow, Jean Dunseith, Ryan Holloway, Stella Jones, Beryl Ezzard and
Rebecca Knox
Chief Executive: Matt Prosser, County Hall, Dorchester, Dorset DT1 1XJ
For more information about this agenda please contact Democratic Services
Meeting Contact 01305 224185 - george.dare@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting, apart from any items listed in
the exempt part of this agenda.
For easy access to all the council’s committee agendas and minutes download the free
public app called Modern.Gov for use on any iPad, Android, and Windows tablet. Once
downloaded select Dorset Council.

Agenda
Item
1.

Pages
APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To disclose any pecuniary, other registrable or non-registrable interest
as set out in the adopted Code of Conduct. In making their disclosure
councillors are asked to state the agenda item, the nature of the
interest and any action they propose to take as part of their declaration.
If required, further advice should be sought from the Monitoring Officer
in advance of the meeting.

3.

MINUTES
To confirm and sign the minutes of the meetings held on:
4 May 2021
6 July 2021
2 September 2021
9 November 2021

4.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
Representatives of town or parish councils and members of the public
who live, work or represent an organisation within the Dorset Council
area are welcome to submit up to two questions or two statements for
each meeting. Alternatively, you could submit one question and one
statement for each meeting.
All submissions must be emailed in full
to george.dare@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk by 8.30am on Monday, 21
March 2022.
When submitting your question(s) and/or statement(s) please note
that:


no more than three minutes will be allowed for any one
question or statement to be asked/read
 a question may include a short pre-amble to set the
context and this will be included within the three
minute period
 please note that sub divided questions count towards
your total of two
 when submitting a question please indicate who the
question is for (e.g. the name of the committee or Portfolio
Holder)
 Include your name, address and contact details. Only
your name will be published but we may need your other
details to contact you about your question or statement in
advance of the meeting.
 questions and statements received in line with the
council’s rules for public participation will be published as a
supplement to the agenda
 all questions, statements and responses will be published
in full within the minutes of the meeting.
Dorset Council Constitution Procedure Rule 9
5.

COUNCILLOR QUESTIONS
To receive questions submitted by councillors.
Councillors can submit up to two valid questions at each meeting and
sub divided questions count towards this total. Questions and

statements received will be published as a supplement to the agenda
and all questions, statements and responses will be published in full
within the minutes of the meeting.
The submissions must be emailed in full to
george.dare@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk by 8.30am on Monday, 21 March
2022.
Dorset Council Constitution – Procedure Rule 13
6.

ARMED FORCES COVENANT LEGISLATION

5 - 20

To consider the report by the Business Partner - Communities and
Partnerships.
7.

SAFEGUARDING FAMILIES TOGETHER: NEW MODEL

21 - 28

To consider the report by the Consultant for Quality Assurance.
8.

EDUCATION LEADERSHIP BOARD

29 - 80

To consider the report by the Corporate Director for Education and
Learning.
9.

CHILDREN'S COMMISSIONING STRATEGY

81 - 96

To consider the report by the Corporate Director for Commissioning,
Quality and Partnerships.
10.

COMMITTEE'S FORWARD PLAN AND CABINET'S FORWARD
PLAN

97 - 110

To consider the Committee's Forward Plan and that of the Cabinet.
11.

URGENT ITEMS
To consider any items of business which the Chairman has had prior
notification and considers to be urgent pursuant to section 100B (4)b)
of the Local Government Act 1972. The reason for the urgency shall
be recorded in the minutes.

12.

EXEMPT BUSINESS
To move the exclusion of the press and public for the following item in
view of the likely disclosure of exempt information within the meaning
of paragraph 4 of schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as
amended).
The public and the press will be asked to leave the meeting whilst the
item of business is considered.

13.

STRENGTHENING SERVICES FOR CHILDREN WHO ARE

111 -

DISABLED
To consider the report by the Head of Service, Children in Care and
Care Leavers.

126

Agenda Item 6
People and Health Overview Committee
24 March 2022
Preparation for the Armed Forces Act 2021
For Review and Consultation
Portfolio Holder:

Cllr L Miller, Customer and Community Services

Local Councillor(s):

Cllr. D Walsh – Armed Forces Member Champion

Executive Director:

A Dunn, Executive Director, Corporate Development

Report Author: Laura Cornette
Title: Business Partner – Communities and Partnerships
Tel: 01305 224306
Email: laura.cornette@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk
Report Status: Public
Brief Summary: To prepare Dorset Council for the implementation of the Armed

Forces Act 2021 which creates a legal obligation for the Council to have ‘due
regard’ to the three principles of the Armed Forces Covenant (AFC). This is the
Armed Forces Covenant Duty. This report sets out a summary of this duty.
Additionally, having briefly reviewed current available Dorset Council policies
covered by it, indicate what actions may need addressing prior to the legislation
being enacted.
Recommendation:
1. Note the new legal obligations
2. To support the inclusion of the requirements of the Armed Forces Act 2021
within the development of new policies and the review of current policies.
Reason for Recommendation:
To ensure legal compliance
1.

The Armed Forces Covenant Duty

1.1 The Armed Forces Act 2021 amends the Armed Forces Act 2006 to
create a legal obligation on relevant bodies, when exercising relevant statutory

Page 5

functions, to have due regard to the three principles of the Armed Forces
Covenant (AFC). This is the Armed Forces Covenant Duty.




1.2 Three principles of the AFC
The unique obligations of, and sacrifices made by, the Armed Forces;
The principle that it is desirable to remove disadvantages arising
for service people from membership, or former membership, of the Armed
Forces; and
The principle that special provision for Service People may be justified by
the effect on such people of membership, or former membership, of the
Armed Forces.

1.3 The new duty will apply to specified persons or bodies, including
councils, when exercising certain housing, education or healthcare functions
(excluding social care). The private sector is not in scope. When such a body
develops, implements or reviews a relevant policy, or makes decisions on its
delivery of relevant services, it must consider the Covenant principles. Namely,
whether the Armed Forces Community experiences disadvantages, attributable
to the unique obligations and sacrifices of service life, that can be removed, and
whether special provision is merited. The Duty is not prescriptive about the
actions bodies should take in order to comply, and it does not mandate specific
public service delivery outcomes or advantageous treatment of the Armed Forces
Community.
1.4 The Act received Royal Assent in December 2021 and now requires the
Secretary of State for Defence to lay draft statutory guidance before Parliament.
It is understood that the Ministry of Defence intends to commence the due regard
duty by December 2022 (amended from the planned Summer of 2022 on the 10 th
February 2022) and that the statutory guidance will be published ahead of that to
give councils time to prepare for its implementation. Additionally, to support it’s
implementation, there will be guaranteed resources including an eLearning
package and a comms/PR/awareness package.
We are expecting to receive a third draft of the statutory guidance imminently for
final comment; to be published in final by the summer.
1.5 Most councils have voluntarily signed the Armed Forces Covenant.
Dorset Council signed in July 2019. The Act’s further enshrinement of the
Covenant into law is an opportunity to build upon work we are already leading to
help serving personnel, veterans, and their families to have the same equality of
access to public services as their civilian neighbours. The forthcoming statutory
guidance will enable us to fully understand the implications of the due regard
duty for councils. We expect the guidance to contain advice and good practice
examples about how bodies might comply the duty.
2. A summary of the functions in scope of the Covenant Duty

Page 6

2.1 The Covenant Duty applies to specific functions within the fields of
healthcare, education, and housing services. These are key areas where
disadvantages to members of the Armed Forces Community have commonly
arisen. The focus of the legislation is on local – and, as appropriate, regional –
provision of these services.






Healthcare
Provision of services
Quality of services
Funding
Co-operation between health
bodies and professionals
Functions concerning
additional needs that
healthcare bodies have a
role in delivering.









Education
Admissions
Transport
Attendance
Additional Needs
support
Educational attainment
and curriculum
Student Wellbeing
Use of Pupil premium






Housing
Allocations policy for
social housing
Homelessness
Disabled facilities
grants
Tenancy strategies
(England only)

2.2 More detail on the specific functions in appendix 1
2.3 The MOD have published 2 connecting draft strategies in support of the
Armed Forces Act 2021:
- Office for Veterans Affairs (OVA) – Veterans Strategy Action Plan 20222024
- MOD – UK Armed Forces strategy 2022-2032
3. Practical steps we can take to get ready for the Act
3.1 Whilst the forthcoming statutory guidance will set out the detailed
requirements for councils to implement the due regard duty, the LGA have set
out some practical steps that Dorset Council can take now to start to get
ready for the anticipated commencement of the duty at the end of this year:






Raise awareness about the forthcoming due regard duty, and
the anticipated implementation timeframe, with colleagues in
housing, education and healthcare services, and with external
partners from other in-scope organisations
Convene initial local discussions, pending the publication of the
statutory guidance, about the potential impact of the due regard
duty on relevant council functions to identify potential gaps /
areas to strengthen in local policies, processes and procedures
across housing, education and health care
Identify potential training needs for frontline council staff working
in housing, education and healthcare services – please note that
the e-learning modules for councils developed by the Coventry,
Solihull and Warwickshire Armed Forces Covenant partnership
are being updated to take account of the duty.

Page 7

√

√







4

Participate in regional discussions about getting ready for the
due regard duty that may be happening at regional Armed
Forces Covenant Partnerships

√

Record costs that we may incur getting ready for the introduction
of the Act and share these with the LGA to feed into the ongoing
new burdens work
Identify potential learning from the local introduction of other
similar duties, such as the Public Sector Equality Duty
Join the LGA’s Armed Forces Officer Covenant Network to hear
latest updates from the Ministry of Defence, help shape the
national statutory guidance and share learning with other
councils. The AFC Programme coordinator also represents the
SW on the LGA Regional AFC Group.

√

Financial Implications

4.1 There is no new government funding attached to the Act. We, like many
South West Councils have indicated to the MOD that we will incur costs to get
ready for and implement the new duty. The MOD has committed to review
potential new burdens costs for councils one year after the commencement of
the duty.
4.2 It is worth noting that the Armed Forces Programme co-ordinator is a fixed
term pan Dorset post until 31 st March 2024 due to external MOD funding.
5

Climate Implications

5.1 No known implications
6

Well-being and Health Implications

6.1 Delivering these new legal obligations should have a positive impact on
Dorset’s Armed Forces serving personnel, their families and the veteran
community.
6.2 It is worth noting the Adults and Children’s social care is not currently
included in the proposed legislation, however there are plans to include these
at a later date
7

Other Implications

Page 8

7.1 No other known implications
8

Risk Assessment

8.1

HAVING CONSIDERED: the risks associated with this decision; the level
of risk has been identified as:
Current Risk: Low
Residual Risk: Low

9
9.1

Equalities Impact Assessment
This new legislation seeks to actively remove disadvantage and, in some
cases, consider whether special provision is merited. An EqIA will need to be
completed.

9.2

The Armed Forces Community are currently a local protected characteristic
as determined within our Equality, Diversity and Inclusion strategy and action
plan.

10

Appendices



11

Appendix 1 - Functions in scope of the Covenant Duty
Appendix 2 - Precis of all available Dorset Council policies which are
relevant to this legislation
Background Papers
None included

Footnote:
Issues relating to financial, legal, environmental, economic and equalities
implications have been considered and any information relevant to the decision is
included within the report.

Page 9

Appendix 1 - Functions in scope of the Covenant Duty
Healthcare
 Provision of services 


Quality of services



Funding





Clinical Commissioning Groups, which means a body
established under section 14D of the National Health
Service Act 2006.


Co-operation between

health bodies and
professionals


NHS Commissioning Boards

Functions concerning 
additional needs that
healthcare bodies have
a role in delivering.

Local Authorities, which means a county council in
England, a district council, a London borough council, the
Common Council of the City of London, or the Council of
the Isles of Scilly.

NHS Foundation Trusts
NHS Trusts



The National Health Service Act 2006



Any provision of Part 3 of the Children
and Families Act 2014 (children and
young people in England with special
educational needs or disabilities), so far
as it deals with health care provision.
‘Health care provision’ is to be
interpreted as in Part 3 of the Children
and Families Act 2014 (see section 21
of that Act).

Page 10

Education

Admissions





Transport



Attendance



Additional needs
support



Educational attainment
and curriculum

Student wellbeing






Use of Service Pupil
Premium funding
(England only)

Local Authorities, which means a county council in

England, a district council, a London borough council, the

Common Council of the City of London, or the Council of
the Isles of Scilly
Governing bodies of maintained schools, where

‘maintained school’ has the same meaning as in the
School Standards and Framework Act 1998 (see section
20 of that Act)

Proprietors of Academies, where ‘Academy’ has the same
meaning as in the Education Act 1996 (see section 579(1)
of that Act), and ‘proprietor’, in relation to an Academy, has
the meaning given by section 579(1) of the Education Act
1996.

Page 11



Non-maintained special schools, which means a school
which is approved under section 342 of the Education Act
1996.



Governing bodies of institutions within the further
education sector, where ‘governing body’ here has the
meaning given by section 90 of the Further and Higher
Education Act 1992, and ‘institution within the further
education sector’ is to be interpreted in accordance with
section 91(3) of the Further and Higher Education Act
1992.



Special post-16 institutions – this term has the same
meaning as in the Children and Families Act 2014 (see
section 83 of that Act).

The Education Act 1996
Part 3 of the School Standards and
Framework Act 1998 (school
admissions)
s175 of the Education Act 2002 (duties
of local authorities and governing
bodies in relation to welfare of children)
Any provision of Part 3 of the Children
and Families Act 2014, so far as it
deals with special educational
provision. ‘Special educational
provision’ is to be interpreted as in Part
3 of the Children and Families Act 2014
(see section 21 of that Act).

Housing 

Allocations policy for 
social housing



Homelessness



Disabled facilities
grants



Page 12

Local Authorities, which means a county council in

England, a district council, a London borough council, the
Common Council of the City of London, or the Council of

the Isles of Scilly.

Part 6 of the Housing Act 1996
(allocation of housing accommodation)



Part 1 of the Housing Grants,
Construction and Regeneration Act
1996 (grants, etc for renewal of private
sector housing)



s1 of the Homelessness Act 2002 (duty
of local housing authority in England to
formulate a homelessness strategy)



s150 of the Localism Act 2011 (tenancy
strategies)



reg3 of the Regulatory Reform
(Housing Assistance) (England and
Wales) Order 2002 (S.I. 2002/1860)
(power of local housing authorities
to provide assistance), so far as that
regulation deals with the provision of
financial assistance for a purpose
corresponding to any purpose specified
in s23 of the Housing Grants,
Construction and Regeneration Act
1996 (disabled facilities grants:
purposes).

Tenancy strategies
(England only)

Part 7 of the Housing Act 1996
(homelessness: England)

Appendix 2 – Dorset Council policies referring to the Armed Forces Covenant/Community

Policy
theme

Policy

Reference

Author

Note

Housing

Housing
allocation policy
2021-26

Section 14 Exclusions 14.1(k)(l)(m)

Sharon Attwater,

Section 17 Financial resource limit

Service Manager
for Housing
Strategy and
Performance

Due to be
reviewed in 2026.

17.4(c)
Appendix 3 - page 45
EqIA

Page 13

-

Part 5 (Analysing the Impact) states positive impact:
‘statutory guidance issued June 2020 has been
incorporated into the proposal. Families of serving and
former members of the Armed Forces are now included.
The requirement for local connection criteria is currently 5
years in some parts of the area and the proposed
requirement is reduced to 2 years or 3 years out of the last
5 years. The spirit of the guidance has been considered.’

-

Part 5 (Action Plan) states that there will be an annual
review to address ‘improving access to social housing for
members of the Armed Forces’ and apply Service
Manager’s discretionary if appropriate and reflect in
annual monitoring.’

Refers to Armed
Forces Act 2006.

Private sector
housing
assistance policy
(Nov 2020)

Link to ‘Empty
Homes Policy’

Page 14

Homelessness &
Rough Sleeping
Strategy 20212026

Section 17 Ensuring Equality and the Armed Forces

Service Manager
for Housing
Standards

Due to be
reviewed in Nov
2023.

Appendix 2

Section 4.2 Preventing homelessness

Sharon Attwater,
Service Manager
for Housing
Strategy and
Performance

EqIA
Link to ‘Housing
Plan’ and ‘Housing
Strategy’

Richard Conway,

-

-

-

Section on ‘preventing homelessness’ states, ‘there is a
strong provision for Armed Forces and former Armed
Forces personnel who become homeless.’
Part 3 (Engagement and consultation) page 8
Part 4 (Analysing the Impact) – ‘there is recognition these
households experience different factors that impact on
homelessness. The current support and routes to support
for these households is acknowledged and actions are
identified to strengthen this.’
Part 5 (Action Plan) – in 2022, for the Armed Forces
community, the Service Manager for Housing Strategy will
undertake a ‘review of homelessness prevention activities
and ways of identifying these households to raise
awareness of and refer to specialist support available.’

Reviewed July
2021. Next review
will be July 2026.

Educatio Admission of
n
Armed Forces
Community
Children Policy
2023-2024

Page 15
Health

Policy applies to all
schools where
Dorset Council
(DC) is the
admissions
authority
(community and
voluntary
controlled schools)
– it will also be
promoted for
adoption with
Dorset schools
which are their
own admissions
authorities
(academies,
foundation,
voluntary aided
and free schools).

Nothing found
within the policy
library

See full detail of policy.

Ed Denham,
Manager
Education Services

Reviewed
annually.

Adult
Social
Care

Nothing found
within the policy
library

Corporat
e:
Procure
ment

Commercial
Strategy –
Commissioning
and Procurement
2021

Applying Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):
page 17
3. Armed Forces Covenant

Page 16

The Council is a signatory to the Armed Forces Convent which is
written and publicised voluntary pledge from organisations who
wish to demonstrate their concrete support for the armed forces
community. Aim: To encourage suppliers to also become a
signatory to reflect the Council’s own commitment to support the
forces through services, policy, and projects. The Armed Forces
Covenant is a promise from the nation to those who serve or who
have served, and their families, which says we will do all we can to
ensure they are treated fairly and not disadvantaged in their dayto-day lives. The Armed Forces Covenant relies on the people,
communities, businesses of the UK to actively support it in order
to make a difference. For further details:
https://www.gov.uk/government/policies/armed-forces-covenant

Appendix B – Corporate Social Responsibility Statements
Armed Forces Covenant
The Council is a signatory to the Armed Forces Convent which is
written and publicised voluntary pledge from organisations who
wish to demonstrate their concrete support for the armed forces
community. For further details:

Author: Dawn
Adams Head of
Service
Procurement and
Commercial

https://www.gov.uk/government/policies/armed-forces-covenant
Please state whether your organisation is also a signatory to the
Armed Forces Covenant or can commit to be a signatory, if
awarded the contract / framework agreement. Select the
appropriate statement:
▪ Yes, our organisation is also a signatory to Armed Forces
Covenant
▪ Yes, our organisation can commit to be a signatory to The
Charter for Employers, if awarded the contract / framework
agreement

Page 17

Equality Equality Scheme
and
2019-2023
Diversity
Policy sets out
Dorset Council's
approach to
equality, diversity
and inclusion.

Section 4.8 and EqIA Step 1: Aims identifies ‘local characteristics’
including ‘people with an armed forces background and their
families.’

EqIA Step 3: Assessment
Page 22 Military Families/Veterans – positive impact identified.
‘Population of Dorset Council area: The profile of Dorset is as
follows: All usual residents living in a household where the
Household Representative Person (HRP) is a member of the armed
forces Military 4,491 Source: Census 2011, Office for National
Statistics Please note the above figure is from the 2011 Census for
usual residents living in households where the Household
Representative Person is a member of the armed forces. Those
living in households where a member of the armed forces is not

Susan Ward-Rice
(Former) EDI
Officer

2023

Page 18

the HRP are not included in these figures. Dorset Council
Workforce profile: At present we do not collect data on
employees who may be veterans or partners of military
personnel. Dorset Council has signed the Armed Forces Covenant
and it has an employer bronze standard award. This is to ensure
that Dorset residents who have served in the forces or are
currently serving and their immediate families are Appendix 2 23
not put at a disadvantage because of the service. As part of their
commitment to obtaining the silver award, there will be a
campaign in the 2020 to encourage employees to advise if they
are veterans and/or reservists. There is also a need to link with
other policies/initiatives such as flexible working and family
friendly which can help employees. Dorset Council anticipates that
this will be a positive impact, as military families/veterans are
included in our EqIA template as a local characteristic, this is to
ensure we give due regard to local issues. An EqIA is a process
designed to ensure that any new or changing policies, projects,
plans and strategies does not discriminate against people with
protected characteristics. In addition, this group will also have
other protected characteristics, and the Equality, Diversity and
Inclusion Policy provides the framework to ensure compliance
with the Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector Equality Duty.’

Culture

Cultural Strategy
2021-2026

State in EqIA for Armed Forces community:
‘The Cultural Strategy will encourage and support organisations to
deliver projects and initiatives that will support Armed Forces
communities to have access to culture, for example: - targeted
work delivered by the Tank Museum and The Keep Military
Museum to support veterans.’

Paul Rutter,
2026
Service Manager
for Leisure Services

HR/OD

HR and OD
policies

Have the following HR provisions:

‘Leave information for reserve forces’ which offers a volunteer
Reservist with any of the Armed Forces up to ten working days or
two weeks paid leave each year for reserve forces training. It also
covers support for our employees who are a partner or spouse of
a Reservist who is called up. For example, if a partner has been
mobilised and a DC employee would like to make short term
arrangements to manage their work-life balance in their absence,
they have the right to request flexible working or a career break
through the DC’s policies on ‘flexible working’ and ‘career breaks’.

Page 19

If the employee has childcare responsibilities or other
dependants, DC has a range of ‘family friendly policies’ in place
and family leave can be requested.
For Reservists who are members of the LGPS or NHS Pension
Schemes and are called up for reservist service their pension
continues to build up, for the duration the period that they are
called up.

For Reservists who are members of the Teacher pension scheme
they are given the option to continue to make their normal
pension contributions during the period of reservist service.

Leave provisions, specifically the Compassionate Leave and/or
Time Off for Dependents policies can be accessed to support the

David McIntosh,
Corporate Director
(HR & OD)

needs of spouses and partners during times of their partner’s
deployment, injury or bereavement.

We also offer a wide range of Wellbeing support (including
counselling) to our employees.

The current ‘Recruitment and Retention Project’ is reviewing DC’s
Recruitment policy and is currently developing a Guaranteed
Interview process for those who are serving or who have served.

Chris Matthews,
Service Manager
for HR Operations

Page 20

Agenda Item 7
People and Health Overview Committee
24 March 2022
Safeguarding Families Together: New Model
For Recommendation to Cabinet
Portfolio Holder:

Cllr A Parry, Children, Education, Skills and Early Help

Local Councillor(s):

All

Executive Director:

T Leavy, Executive Director of People - Children

Report Author: Lisa Reid
Title: Quality Assurance Consultant
Tel: 01305 228396
Email: lisa.reid@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk
Report Status: Public
Recommendation:
Members are invited to comment on the Safeguarding Families Together model
and support the implementation of a pilot project in Chesil (Weymouth and
Portland).
Reason for Recommendation:
As part of the Delivering Locally priority within our Children Young People and
Families plan 2020-2023, we committed to ‘embed whole family approaches, with
a particular focus on addressing the needs of children living with parental
substance use, mental ill-health or domestic abuse’. The evidence base of this
whole family approach is strong, and this project is part of our wider
Transformation Programme within the Children Service’s Directorate.
1.

1.1.

Executive Summary
Nationally there has been an increase in the demand for children’s
services over recent years and this has increased further following the
Covid impact. There is a well-managed system in Dorset and we are not
seeing the same level of increase in demand, however we are seeing an
increase in complexity with the families that we are working with and a

Page 21

sustained need for support for families experiencing multiple and complex
challenges. The Safeguarding Families Together (SFT) model will
provide a planned strategic approach that will help address this and
deliver better outcomes for children and their families.
1.2.

The main aspect of Safeguarding Families Together (SFT) project is
creating specialist Multi-Disciplinary Teams working alongside social
workers on Children In Need/Child Protection/Children In Care to support
children and parents by integrating the specialist workers tackling
domestic abuse, parental mental health, and substance misuse to
improve children's lives through whole family working.

1.3.

80% of our child protection work in Dorset is related to families
experiencing domestic abuse, parental substance misuse and/or poor
parental mental health. All of these areas of challenge have been an
increased area of concern due to the pandemic and an increased need
for partnership involvement and support to our families. There has been
increased investment in perpetrator programmes and domestic abuse
offer and we want to enhance this further to ensure these are more
readily available and effective within the child’s timeline. These parental
issues and fragmentation of support available for families are a significant
cost driver in demand for children's social care and placement costs.

1.4.

Similar models to SFT have already been embedded across other local
authorities and demonstrated significant impact and value for money and
significant impact on practice and culture change. The models have been
evaluated by the DfE to be effective and good practice. It aligns with the
current strength-based practice model; the Dorset Children Thrive model
with an emphasis on working positively with parents to enable them to
keep their children at home when safe to do so.

1.5.

This model will enable us to further skill up our workforce, through a more
collaborative way of working where we motivate parents to identify the
changes needed within their own families. The SFT approach seeks to
change the way social workers engage with parents, working with them to
facilitate their own change of behaviour. This will help achieve better
outcomes for children.

2.

Financial Implications

The application of this approach has been evaluated nationally and shows a
strong return on investment. Funding has been secured for this pilot programme
through the Council’s Transformation programme and forms part of the

Page 22

Children’s Services Five Year Budget Strategy. Financial benefits realisation will
be tracked and reported corporately.

3.

Well-being and Health Implications

Offering seamless pathways of whole family support has been shown to improve
wellbeing and health outcomes.
4.
Climate implications
None identified
5.

Other Implications

In order for this model to be effective the council will need to work with partners
in the Police, Probation, Health Services including Public Health and the
community and voluntary sector.
6.

Risk Assessment

Having considered the risks associated with this decision, the level of risk has
been identified as:
Current Risk: Low
Residual Risk: Low
7.

Equalities Impact Assessment

An EqIA has been completed for the Children Young People and Families Plan.
A project level equalities impact assessment is in the process of being
undertaken alongside developing the plans and strategy.
8.

Appendices

None
9.

Background Papers

Children Young People and Families plan 2020-2023 – Delivering Locally priority
Domestic Abuse Strategy 2021-2024
Family Safeguarding Evaluation - 2020
Family Safeguarding – Hertfordshire 2017
10.

Introduction and background

Page 23

10.1.

This project is part of a comprehensive Transformation Programme within
the Children Service’s Directorate. As part of the Delivering Locally
priority within our Children Young People and Families plan, we
committed to ‘embed whole family approaches, with a particular focus on
addressing the needs of children living with parental substance use,
mental ill-health or domestic abuse’.

10.2.

Nationally there has been an increase in the demand for children’s
service over recent years and this has increased further following the
Covid impact, this is also reflected locally (Chesil) including a continued
projected increase in demand. The Safeguarding Families Together
(SFT) model will provide a planned strategic approach that will help
manage the high levels of demand, whilst also delivering better outcomes
for children and their families.

10.3.

80% of our child protection work is related to families experiencing
domestic abuse, parental substance misuse and/or poor parental mental
health. All of these areas of challenge have been an increased area of
concern due to the pandemic and an increased need for partnership
involvement and support to our families. There has been increased
investment in perpetrator programmes and domestic abuse offer and we
want to enhance this further to ensure these are more readily available
and effective within the child’s timeline. These parental issues and
fragmentation of support available for families are a significant cost driver
in demand for children's social care and placement costs.

10.4.

A transformation proforma was submitted to the Performance Leadership
Group for transformation funding, it highlighted; although decreasing, our
rate of children in care (65 per 10,000) is still higher than we want it to be.
Need is seen in all parts of the county, however the greatest need and
challenge is in the Weymouth and Portland area, where 40% of our
looked after children and child protection cases and 1/3 of our CIN cases
come from/ most of our CIN (68%) and CP (74%) cases are children aged
12 and under.

10.5.

Half of our children in care are under 12 (Based on August 2021
performance data) and this intervention is key to reducing the number of
younger children in the care system.

10.6.

Similar models to SFT have already been embedded across other local
authorities and demonstrated significant impact and value for money and
significant impact on practice and culture change. The models have been
evaluated by the DfE to be effective and good practice. It aligns with the
current strength-based practice model; the Dorset Children Thrive model

Page 24

with an emphasis on working positively with parents to enable them to
keep their children at home when safe to do so.
10.7.

This model will enable us to further skill up our workforce, through a more
collaborative way of working where we motivate parents to identify the
changes needed within their own families. The SFT approach seeks to
change the way social workers engage with parents, working with them to
facilitate their own change of behaviour. This will help achieve better
outcomes for children.

10.8. SFT is designed to provide rapid, proactive support to children and their
families. It is delivered by multiagency teams who are trained in a range of
highly effective interventions.
10.9. The principle underpinning this model is to ensure that families open to
statutory services can receive interventions from Mental Health,
Substance Misuse and Domestic Abuse, if required, once a case is open
to children’s social care. The model will enable parents to receive the right
support and intervention, in a coordinated way, to enable greater chances
for children to remain with parents and prevent children becoming subject
to Child Protection plans.
10.10. The main aspect of Safeguarding Families Together (SFT) project is
creating specialist Multi-Disciplinary Teams working alongside social
workers on Children In Need/Child Protection/Children In Care to support
children and parents by integrating the specialist workers tackling
domestic abuse, parental mental health, and substance misuse to improve
children's lives through whole family working. We will work in partnership
with safeguarding, Domestic Abuse and Mental Health and Substance
Misuse services to create a common language around screening, risk
assessment and interventions, underpinned by regular lines of
communication.
10.11. Safeguarding Families Together aims
 Increase engagement with professionals, leading to more help and
support. This approach will focus on increasing the engagement of
families with professionals and information sharing between professionals
will be strengthened.
 Health and education outcomes for children will be improved
 Provide a multi-disciplinary approach that addresses both parents’ and
children’s needs.
 Deliver more responsive support, reducing drift and delay.

Page 25

 Keep more “high-risk families” together safely, when safe to do so.
 Improve children’s health and educational outcomes.
 Enabling professionals to do more direct work with families
 Families will be offered the right support at the right time, to help them to
reduce the risks to their children and enable children to stay at home
where it is safe to do so
 Schools and local community partners will play a key role in identifying
and supporting families who need early help
 Using the whole family approach, to reduce the number of children coming
into care, and being taken away from their families
 Increase social workers’ capacity enabling them to spend more face-toface direct working with families - and less time on administration
 High-quality services will continue to be provided at a reduced financial
cost to the council and partners and provide better outcomes for children.
10.12. Project outcomes and aspirations
Strengthen relationships with partner agencies by providing evidenced
based multi-agency practice and:
 Reduction in risk and need to increase the number of families stepping
down to early help services
 Reduction in number of repeat referrals





CIN and CP
Reduction of Child Protection and Children in Need Plans
Increase in the take up of family network meetings
Reduction of cases in care proceedings
Evidence of families contributing to joint co-produced plans

Children in care
 Reduction of Children in Care
 Reduction in children placed at home with a care order
 Reduction in placement costs
We want to work with partners to identify KPIs, the following are examples
and not exhaustive:
Education
 Reductions in exclusions from schools
Health

Page 26

 Reductions in A and E visits due to Domestic Abuse
 Reduction in IHA and review requirements
Police
 Reductions in repeat visits by police to DA incidents
 Reduced resource requirement at child protection conferences
Team Managers will lead the creation of a change in culture.
• Increase in numbers of Motivational Interview skilled workers in workforce
demonstrating competence in Motivational Interviewing
• Relationships with parents will be improved and parents will feel supported
by the changes and provide feedback about how they have benefited from
support
11.

Links with other programmes and work
This approach is intended to work alongside and offer additional capacity
to other important areas of work including:
 The national ‘Supporting Families Programme’, formerly known as
Troubled Families, which has been extended for 3 years from 1 st April
2022. We are awaiting an announcement from the government on the
programme outcomes that this will seek to deliver.
 The delivery of the Dorset Domestic Abuse Strategy, which recognises
that working together to ensure that there is a system of support locally
for supporting those affected by domestic abuse and tackling offenders
 Family Pathfinder Programme – a new model for supporting separating
families through the family courts
 The Children’s Services Transformation Programme and delivery of
our 5-year financial plan
 Delivery of the Children, Young People and Families Plan (2020-2023)

12.
12.1.

Recommendation
Members are invited to comment on the Safeguarding Families Together
model and support the implementation of a pilot project in Chesil
(Weymouth and Portland).

Footnote:
Issues relating to financial, legal, environmental, economic and equalities
implications have been considered and any information relevant to the decision is
included within the report.

Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
People and Health Overview Committee
24th March 2022
Dorset Education Board
For Recommendation to Cabinet
Portfolio Holder:

Cllr A Parry, Children, Education, Skills and Early Help

Local Councillor(s):

All

Executive Director:

T Leavy, Executive Director of People - Children

Report Author:
Title:
Tel:
Email:

Vik Verma
Corporate Director, Education
01305 224683
vik.verma@DorsetCouncil.gov.uk

Report Status: Public
Recommendation:
That the Committee acknowledges and supports the creation of a new Education
Board for Dorset and provides a view on this new policy proposal.
Reason for Recommendation:
The establishment of an Education Board for Dorset would retain the strength of
partnership working through the pandemic and mobilise our partnership to deliver
the opportunities and tackle the challenges of the education system in Dorset.

1.

Executive Summary

The Board will include key educational leaders in Dorset who have the passion
and expertise across the education ecosystem. It will use local, regional and
national evidence and research to inform its foci. The Board will set a clear
direction and a positive culture to support partners to deliver ambitious
educational outcomes for all children and young people into adulthood.
It will be essential to engage children and young people in the work of the Board
to ensure that the strategies are co-produced and they feel ownership of the

Page 29

decisions that affect them. The committees will review and engage with existing
School Councils and Advocacy structures in place across Dorset so that the
Board can be informed by the views and experiences of children and young
people in the development of each committee.
The culture of the Board will be to create an open and innovative dialogue, where
the strength of the partnership offers novel solutions to systemic challenges built
on the strong links within the communities where educational settings remain at
the heart.
The Board will oversee delivery of the three core building blocks which will
enable the education system in Dorset to thrive. These include:
1. To ensure every child is receiving education in an Ofsted ‘Good’ or
‘Outstanding’ school and setting.
2. To close the disadvantaged attainment and achievement gap to zero by
providing inclusive support for our disadvantaged and vulnerable children
so they can achieve alongside their peers in their local school or setting.
3. To ensure that all our children and young people thrive in their education
with the skills they need ready for adulthood.
A detailed Business Plan setting out the full proposal is available in Appendix 1 of
this report.
2.

Financial Implications

A budget has been set aside for the recruitment and appointment of an
Independent Chair and the remuneration needed for the Chair each year. The
appointment of an independent Chair will bring independent leadership bringing
together the various partners within the Board to promote close collaboration.

3.

Well-being and Health Implications

It is anticipated that the improved Education outcomes realised by the creation of
the Board will support the well-being and Health outcomes for children and young
people in Dorset.
The Board will oversee delivery of the three core building blocks which will
enable the education system in Dorset to thrive. These include:


To ensure every child is receiving education in an Ofsted ‘Good’ or
‘Outstanding’ school and setting.

Page 30



To close the disadvantaged attainment and achievement gap to zero by
providing strong inclusive support for our disadvantaged and vulnerable
children so they can achieve alongside their peers in their local settings
and schools.



To ensure that all our children and young people thrive in their education
with the skills they need ready for adulthood.

4.

Climate implications

None
5.

Other Implications

The Dorset Education Board will review the progress against Dorset’s SEND
Strategy.
6.

Risk Assessment

Having considered the risks associated with this decision, the level of risk has
been identified as:
Current Risk: Low
Residual Risk: Low
7.
Equalities Impact Assessment
Not applicable
8.


Appendices
Appendix 1 - Dorset Education Board Business Plan Dorset Education
Board Business Plan



Appendix 2 - Dorset SEND Strategy Dorset Council SEND Strategy 20212024

9.

Background Papers

Footnote:
Issues relating to financial, legal, environmental, economic and equalities
implications have been considered and any information relevant to the decision is
included within the report.

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

DORSET EDUCATION BOARD
Business Plan

Page 33

Page 1 of 14

TABLE OF CONTENTS
1.1

BACKGROUND AND CONTEXT ............................................................................... 3

1.2

EDUCATION BOARD FOR DORSET......................................................................... 4

1.3
DORSET EDUCATION BOARD STRUCTURE .......................................................... 6
Dorset Education Board Members .......................................................................................... 6
Education and Inclusion Committee ........................................................................................ 8
Skills Committee .................................................................................................................... 10
1.4

EDUCATIONAL ACHIEVEMENT IN DORSET ......................................................... 11

School and academy Ofsted Status ...................................................................................... 11
Early Years Foundation Stage (Good Level of Development) by quartile ............................. 11
Key Stage 2 Attainment (Expected Standard) by quartile ..................................................... 12
Key Stage 4 Attainment ......................................................................................................... 12
Post 16 .................................................................................................................................. 13

Page 34

Page 2 of 14

1.1 Background and context
The education landscape nationally has been undergoing significant change over the last
decade, particularly driven by the growth in academies since the introduction of the
Academies Act 2010 and the Children and Families Act 2014.
In 2010 there were only 203 academies in England, all of which were secondary schools.
The number of pupils attending academies (including free schools) has continued to grow,
along with the number of academies albeit at a slower rate over the last four years. As at
June 2021, while 39% of all schools in England were academies1, over half of all pupils
(52%) were attending an academy. This is due to higher proportions of secondary schools
being academies than primary, with typically much higher numbers of pupils. At January
2021:
•

37% of primary schools in England are now academies or free schools, accounting
for 39% of the primary school population;

•

78% of secondary schools in England are academies or free schools, accounting for
78% of secondary school pupils.

Whilst the governance and increased autonomy of schools and their improvement has
changed fundamentally over the last decade, toward a greater focus on centralised control
and monitoring by the Department for Education through the Regional Schools
Commissioner; the need for the education system to sit at the heart of its wider community
remains a priority for the Council as set out in the Children, Young People and Families’
Plan.
During the pandemic and first school closures, Dorset Council provided system leadership to
place-based partners through the Strategic Alliance to bring together wider education
partnership. The partnership of council services, educational settings (including maintained
schools and academies), health, social care, police, the parent carer forum and the voluntary
community sector mobilised a holistic response to the issues that were affecting our children
and young people whether they were at home, in school or in the community.
Dorset Council has worked collaboratively with maintained schools and academies alike,
regardless of their governance, to ensure Dorset can be the best place to be a child, where
communities thrive and families are supported to be the best they can be.
Leadership of the pandemic response to navigate the unprecedented challenges that
affected children and young people demonstrated the importance of:
1. local knowledge of communities;
2. coordinated action across partners; and
3. trusted relationships built on transparent and productive communication.

1

As at the end of the last academic year (2020/21) based on the Schools, pupils and their characteristics census
data published in June 2021.

Page 35

Page 3 of 14

1.2 Education Board for Dorset
The establishment of an Education Board for Dorset would retain the strength of partnership
working through the pandemic and mobilise our partnership to deliver the opportunities and
tackle the challenges of the education system in Dorset.
The Board will include key educational leaders in Dorset who have the passion and
expertise across the education ecosystem. It will use local, regional and national evidence
and research to inform its foci. The Board will set a clear direction and a positive culture to
support partners to deliver ambitious educational outcomes for all children and young people
into adulthood.
It will be essential to engage children and young people in the work of the Board to ensure
that the strategies are co-produced and they feel ownership of the decisions that affect them.
The committees will review and engage with existing School Councils and Advocacy
structures in place across Dorset so that the Board can be informed by the views and
experiences of children and young people in the development of each committee.
The culture of the Board will be to create an open and innovative dialogue, where the
strength of the partnership offers novel solutions to systemic challenges built on the strong
links within the communities where educational settings remain at the heart.

The Board will oversee delivery of the three core building blocks which will enable the
education system in Dorset to thrive. These include:

Page 36

Page 4 of 14

1. To ensure every child is receiving education in an Ofsted ‘Good’ or ‘Outstanding’
school and setting.
2. To close the disadvantaged attainment and achievement gap to zero by providing
inclusive support for our disadvantaged and vulnerable children so they can achieve
alongside their peers in their local school or setting.
3. To ensure that all our children and young people thrive in their education with the
skills they need ready for adulthood.

Page 37

Page 5 of 14

1.3 Dorset Education Board Structure
The Education Board will be led by an Independent Chair and report through the Strategic
Alliance governance. Two sub-committees will be formed under the leadership of the Board
to research ideas and provide oversight of the key priorities.
The Chair of each sub-committee will report progress to the Dorset Education Board. Sub
Committees will meet twice a term. Members after the Chair are identified in alphabetical
order.

Dorset Education Board

Education and Inclusion
Committee

Skills Committee

Dorset Education Board Members
The Dorset Education Board is the Board where improvement and progress are made to
Dorset’s Education system, it includes all key partners and will meet on a termly basis.
The role of the Board Members is to provide leadership, expert advice and partnership
support to ensure the appropriate development and delivery of the aims of the Board. It is
essential that Board Members represent their thematic area rather than their organisational
goals and thus their role is to provide a sector led view to inform strategic discussions.
Members will be active in supporting the identification of future priorities, areas of opportunity
and the subsequent plans for each committee. It is expected that they will leverage support
across the sector and ensure that that key staff and stakeholders are engaged in
contributing and supporting the work of each committee so that progress can be made each
term.
The Board will not review individual school or academy trust performance and this is not
within its remit. Its purpose is to facilitate and enable discussions focused on leading practice
both nationally and internationally and provide peer learning opportunities, challenge and
support. A key focus for the Board will be to identify solutions and strategies to reduce
inequity in the education system to promote inclusion.

Page 38

Page 6 of 14

Areas of Focus
Board Members will give leadership to the following areas of focus:
•

Strategic oversight of the direction of the education ecosystem in Dorset to deliver
the ambitions set out in the building blocks:
o to ensure every child is receiving education in an Ofsted ‘Good’ or
‘Outstanding’ setting or school;
o to close the disadvantaged attainment and achievement gap to zero by
providing strong focused support for our vulnerable children so they can
achieve alongside their peers in their local setting or school; and
o to ensure that all our children and young people thrive in their education with
the skills they need ready for adulthood.
Create mechanisms to bring together key educational data and intelligence across
the education ecosystem to inform its work.
Develop campaigns, policies and interventions to deliver its ambitions.
Oversee the work of its Committees and ensure that resource and expertise is
available to deliver.

•
•
•

Main Board
Independent Chair
Academy leaders

3 Academy CEOs

Chair of Birth to Settled Adulthood

Dorset Council

Director of Education and Learning

Dorset Council

Director of Care and Protection

Dorset Council

Director of Commissioning and Partnerships

Dorset Council

Early Years representative

Nominated by Sector

Faith Education representative

Salisbury Diocese Board of Education

Further Education College Representatives

Weymouth College and Kingston
Maurward College

Lead Member for Education

Dorset Council Cabinet

Parent Carer representative

Dorset Parent Carer Forum

Police Safer schools and Neighbourhoods
Lead

Dorset Police

Primary Care Lead

Dorset NHS

Regional Schools Commissioner

Department for Education

School phase leaders:
•

Representatives of WALE

Primary phase leader association

•

Representatives of DASH

Secondary phase leader association

•

Representatives of DAMS

Middle School phase leader association

•

Representatives of SSHAD

Special School association

•

Representatives of DALCH

Learning Centres association

Page 39

Page 7 of 14

Committee Representatives

Will be invited to join the Dorset Education
Board to present the work and progress of
their Committee at each meeting

Education and Inclusion Committee
Key education leaders will work together to realise the accelerated improvements for our
Education system so that no child is left behind, with inclusion being at the heart of our
programme of work.
Areas of Focus
The data section of this business plan sets out areas of consideration for the Education and
Inclusion Committee. For each phase of Education, the committee will discuss and identify
the opportunities for the partnership to work together to utilise leading practice both
nationally and internationally in recognition of the increased need children and young people
have. A key focus will be to raise standards for all children and young people and create
incredible opportunities for children and young people to grasp.
This committee will also focus on targeted initiatives for improving outcomes for all children,
in particular key disadvantaged and vulnerable groups of children, and ensure they are
educated in settings and schools that are good or outstanding. The Committee will also
focus on the impact of children missing out on education and how the wider partnership can
work together to deliver ambitious outcomes for them. This Committee will also oversee the
progress of Dorset’s SEND Strategy 2021-23 which has six key priority areas as identified
below.
1. Early identification and support: We will make sure we identify, assess and support
children’s needs both early in life and when issues arise.
2. Inclusion: We will make sure there is a commitment to services and support that is
inclusive of children, young people and adults with special educational needs and
disabilities.
3. SEND pathway: We will make sure that children and young people with SEND and
their families can access the right support from services easily and quickly.
4. SEND Sufficiency and provision: We will make sure we increase the education we
provide for all children and young people with SEND so that our children can stay in
Dorset and thrive in their local communities.
5. Transitions and preparation for adulthood: We will make sure that transitions
between phases of education or changes in what we provide as support are smooth
and supportive across all ages (linking with the 0 to Settled Adulthood Board)
6. Managing money and resources: We will make sure that we manage our SEN
funding from the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) effectively and efficiently so that we
can have the best impact and outcomes for our children and young people with the
resources available.

Page 40

Page 8 of 14

It is recognised that the quality of educational provision cannot exceed the quality of its
professionals and therefore the Committee will promote:
•

the sufficiency of educators and professionals working with children and young
people;

•

high quality training and development opportunities available; and

•

their wellbeing.

Committee Members
Corporate Director, Education (Chair)

Dorset Council

Academy leaders

3 Academy CEOs

CWAD Service Manager

Dorset Council

Designated Clinical Officer

Dorset Commissioning Group

Early Years representative

Nominated by Sector

Faith Education representative

Salisbury Diocese Board of Education

Head of Locality Service

Dorset Council (Adult Services)

Parent Carer Representative

Dorset Parent Carer Forum

Police Safer schools and Neighbourhoods
Lead

Dorset Police

Principal Educational Psychologist

Dorset Council

Principal Teacher

Dorset Council

Public Health Lead

Dorset Council

School phase leaders:
•

Chair of WALE

Primary phase leader association

•

Chair of DAMS

Middle School phase leader association

•

Chair of DASH

Secondary phase leader association

•

Chair of SSHAD

Special School leader association

•

Chair of DALCH

Learning Centre association

Schools Forum Chair

Schools Forum

SEND Strategic Lead

Dorset Council

Teaching School representative(s)

Delta Education Trust
Teaching Alliance Association for Special
Schools

It is anticipated that other stakeholders will be invited to join this Committee for thematic
discussions. This may include Officers from Quality Assurance Functions such as Dorset’s
Principal Social Worker, wider Organisational Development colleagues alongside specialist
areas from partners across Dorset.

Page 41

Page 9 of 14

Skills Committee
We will ensure that our children and young people are ready for their future education and
careers with positive aspirations and clear routes for their future employment and further
education. This committee will focus on ensuring that our young people have the
qualifications and skills needed to match the changing needs of the local, regional and
national economies.

Director of Commissioning (Chair)
Economic Growth representative
EET Service Representative
Further Education College Representatives
Further Education representative
Higher Education Representative

Dorset Council
Dorset Council
Dorset Council
Weymouth College and Kingston
Maurward College
Further Education Post 16 Mainstream
Higher Education / University sector

Local Education Partnership, Dorset (LEP)
representative

Head of Enterprise, Skills and Industry

Principal Teacher
SEND Commissioner
Virtual School Head Teacher
Voluntary and Community Sector
Representative

Dorset Council
Dorset Council
Dorset Council
Sector representative

As with the Education and Research Committee representatives from specialist areas e.g.
Education Technology organisations will be invited to thematic discussions as required.
Areas of Focus
This Committee will ensure that all our children and young people thrive in their education
with the skills they need ready for adulthood. The Committee will interface with existing
governance in Dorset such as with the Local Education Partnership (LEP) and current
programmes being delivered within Dorset Council. The Committee will support programmes
focus on:
1. Promoting social mobility within Dorset by ensuring that our young people have the
skills needed to match the economic requirements of Dorset.
2. Reviewing the pathway and experience of our young people who are currently Not in
Employment, Education or Training (NEET).
3. Developing more opportunities for work and training for our most vulnerable children
and young people.
4. Working creatively with the business community and schools in partnership to
improve access to work opportunities and to support local economic growth.

Page 42

Page 10 of 14

5. Leading the research and coordination of the opportunities for ed-tech and future
technologies for all educational settings and our children and young people to
develop our educational offer and ensure no child is left behind in the adoption of
new technologies.

1.4 Educational Achievement in Dorset
The following section provides a high-level overview of outcomes for our children and young
people in Dorset. Due to the pandemic much of the achievement data used below dates
back to 2019, despite this the data identifies some long-standing trends that are unlikely to
have changed significantly through the pandemic.
School and academy Ofsted Status
Dorset has 159 Schools with currently 76% of these being Good or Outstanding (as at
September 2021). This compares to 87% nationally, with 83% in the South West and 84%
against our statistical neighbours. When considering this by phase the following can be
found:
Phase
Primary
First
Middle
Secondary
Further
Education*

Dorset – Ofsted Good or
Outstanding
76%
97%
70%
72%
100%

Statistical
Neighbours
85%

England Average
88%

n/a
78%
73%

n/a
78%
73%

Early Years Foundation Stage (Good Level of Development) by quartile

Q5
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

Q4

Q3

Q2

Q1
9

58
61
108
98
80

Dorset performs in-line with the National profile, but the accelerated improvements that have
been made in other regions of the country have not been realised in Dorset to date. Our
disadvantaged pupils’ outcomes are in line with our statistical neighbour average and that of
the South West. A consideration for the Board will be to identify strategies to improve
attainment for disadvantaged learners during their Early Years Foundation Stage and KS1.

Page 43

Page 11 of 14

Key Stage 2 Attainment (Expected Standard) by quartile

Q5
Reading

Writing

Maths

2017
2018
2019

Q4

Q3

Q2
59

Q1

93
88

2017
2018
2019

139
123

2017
2018
2019

122
136

112

118

The data shows that Key Stage 2 performance for Dorset needs to be improved and
illustrates that this has been a trend for some time. From a relatively strong start at Key
Stage 1, the progress between Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2 is in the bottom 20% for all
subjects and has been for a number of years. Positively, there have been improvements, but
Dorset still lags significantly behind the best national attainment outcomes. Maths is 3%
below the National attainment with the combined Reading/Writing/Maths (RWM) being 4%
below. For our Disadvantaged pupils Dorset’s profile is in the bottom 20% for all subjects
(excluding Reading).
When considering school status i.e. maintained or Academy structure it is worthwhile to note
that the performance profile is consistent regardless of school or Academy status.
The Education Board will need to focus on strategies that can improve performance starting
in Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2.

Key Stage 4 Attainment
The data for this stage is more up to date, however there were changes in method of
assessment due to the pandemic. Key Stage 4 outcomes were awarded by ‘exams in 2019
‘centre assessed grades’ in 2020, and ”teacher assessed grades” in 2021. Local Authority
level outcomes are available for 2020 and 2021, but progress data is not available system
wide. The Board may wish to discuss with key stakeholders the experiences and issues for
this cohort in Dorset in the absence of quantitative data.
Dorset’s profile shows that attainment is broadly in-line with the national average, although
Attainment 8 is below the South West average. For Basics (GCSE English and Maths)
Dorset is above the National for the grade 4 or higher, but below at the higher grade 5+.

Page 44

Page 12 of 14

SEN attainment is broadly in line with the national average, however the disadvantaged
attainment gap has been increasing, particularly at the 5+ level. When considering wider
subject performance, this broadly follows the national trend, although it should be noted that
attainment for languages is a concern: at the 4+ level Dorset ranks 143rd, while at the higher
5+ level it ranks 147th.

Q5

Q4

Q3
72
74
81

Attainment 8

2019
2020
2021

Basics 4+

2019
2020
2021

74

2019
2020
2021

89
81
75

Basics 5+

Q2

Q1

51
49

Post 16
The Dorset Education Board will need to retain a focus on the onward destinations,
aspirations and opportunities for our young people and the retention of the investment in
skills within the Dorset economy.
For our A Level students, the table below sets out the current profile of attainment for Key
Stage 5.
Q5
APS per
entry (A
level)

2019
2020
2021

% achieving
AAB grades
(A level)

2019
2020
2021

Q4

Q3
70

Q2

Q1

52
27
89
44
81

At Post 16, Dorset has predominantly a largely school-based system (as opposed to stand
alone College institutions) with a high proportion of A level students - 63% compared to 42%
nationally. Positively, 97% of Dorset pupils achieved at least 2 substantial level 3
qualifications in 2021, compared to 87% nationally.
Whilst 49% of students in Dorset go onto School 6th forms (37% nationally), less than 1% go
to 6th form colleges compared to 13% nationally. With only two Further Education colleges

Page 45

Page 13 of 14

in the county many students access provision out of the county but in a largely rural area this
has significant transport challenges. The Board will focus on career pathways and choices
for our young people.

Page 46

Page 14 of 14

DORSET COUNCIL
SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND
DISABILITIES STRATEGY
2021 – 2024

Page 47

1

CONTENTS
Our Vision for SEND in Dorset .............................................................................................. 3
Our Commitment................................................................................................................... 3
The National Context ............................................................................................................ 5
Progress since the Written Statement of Action in 2017 ........................................................ 7
The Local Context – SEND Statistics and Dorset .................................................................. 8
Early years age children – SEND profile (January 2020) ....................................................... 8
School Age children and Young People – SEND Profile Statistics (July 2021) ...................... 8
Areas of Need ..................................................................................................................... 10
Educational settings for children and young people with an EHCP...................................... 10
Educational Outcomes for children and young people with SEND (data is 2019 due to delays
from COVID Education data sets) ....................................................................................... 11
Exclusion Data for Children with SEND ............................................................................... 12
Health’s Commitment to Children and Young People with SEND in Dorset......................... 15
Our Priorities ....................................................................................................................... 17
Priority One: Early Identification and Support ...................................................................... 18
Priority Two: Inclusion ......................................................................................................... 21
Priority Three: SEND Pathway ............................................................................................ 23
Priority Four: SEND Sufficiency and Provision .................................................................... 26
Priority Five: Transitions and Preparation for Adulthood Vision: .......................................... 28
Priority Six: Managing Money and Resources ..................................................................... 30
How we will make sure this is delivered .............................................................................. 32

Page 48

2

Our Vision for Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) in Dorset
Our vision is clear and focused:
“We want our children and young people with Special Educational Needs and
Disabilities (SEND) to be healthy, happy and safe, and able to achieve their potential
to lead a fulfilling life. We want them to have, and to expect, the same opportunities in
life as other children and young people.’’
This vision is within the context of Dorset’s Children’s and Young Peoples plan 2020-25,
which sets out that:
•

We want Dorset to be the best place to be a child, where communities thrive and
where our families are supported to be the best they can be. Our partnership has a
bold and courageous vision to deliver the best education for all our children and
young people;

•

To prepare our young people for independence (adulthood); and

•

For our children and young people to experience the best possible health and
wellbeing.

Our Commitment
Our work is shaped by the following commitments. We will:
•

Embed co-production across all aspects of our work so that parent carers and
children and young people with SEND are recognised as equal partners and are fully
involved in decision making;

•

Work in partnership to promote transparency and consistency in decision making and
delivery of support;

•

Embrace new ways of working to support and enable innovative practice;

•

Commit to identify and understand the challenges faced by our families who have
children with SEND;

•

Commit to providing good quality services with clear and accessible information;

•

Prepare young people for adult life and independence from the earliest years; and

•

Ensure that moves between services or changes in provision and support across all
ages are smooth, seamless and supportive.

Improving our Services – what our Children, Young People and Families say:
We work in partnership with Dorset Parent Carer Council and listen to our families with
children and young people with SEND. We will continue to be ambitious and continuously

Page 49

3

improve our services so they can positively impact the lives of our children and young
people.
In January 2021 we issued a SEND parent carer survey and families told us that:

What we do well - our parents and carers have told us the following:
•

Families who are supported by locality teams have had positive experiences;

•

Positive experience from families working with our wider SEND system including
Education, Health and Care, who support SEND families;

•

Families who are supported have had positive experiences through the EHC Plan
process within their educational settings;

•

Families have had positive experiences of the EHC Plan annual review process
within their educational settings;

•

Positive experiences from families through the graduated approach at SEN support
within their educational settings;

•

Positive experiences from families with their SEND travel arrangements; and

•

Our newsletters and advice letters realise good take up and engagement from SEND
families.

However, for others there are areas of our SEND system which can be difficult, and their
experiences are that:
•

understanding how the system works is difficult, this means that they can feel lost
and sometimes find it difficult to find out what is available for their child

•

they worry their child will struggle to ‘fit in’ or make friends and cannot always access
services e.g. out of hours school provision or after school clubs

•

there is too long a wait for some assessments and therapies e.g. Speech and
Language Therapy and Educational Psychology and not enough of these services;

•

some feel that getting an EHC Plan is the only way of accessing the support their
child needs

•

services are often not joined up, don’t always work together and families have to give
the same information repeatedly, to different teams

•

they worry the County hasn’t got the right range of educational provision to meet their
child’s or young person’s needs, and sometimes that there is not enough of it;

•

they worry about how their children are supported in mainstream schools;

•

their child with SEND, their siblings and themselves as parent carers, are facing
increasing levels of anxiety and poor mental health; and

•

they are concerned about their child’s future, and the ‘cliff-edge’ of adult services.

Page 50

4

Improving our strategy means that our children and their families in the future will say
that:
•

we are listened to and respected;

•

our needs are understood, acknowledged, and provided for;

•

our voice and views are at the heart of all decision making for our child;

•

we are involved in co-production of services and support at all levels of the system;

•

we have access to good quality and impartial information, advice, and support;

•

we have regular communication that is tailored to specific needs;

•

our needs are identified early;

•

the pathways to access help are transparent and equitable;

•

we have more help from a range of agencies for our children and young people on
SEN Support;

•

we can access a variety of short breaks and after school activities;

•

the professionals that work in partnership with parents are well trained and
empathetic, and work flexibly around us with a person centred approach;

•

we are welcomed and included, and we are accessing education, social and leisure
opportunities within our local community;

•

we are no longer excluded from schools; and

•

we know what to expect and when moving from children’s to adult’s services;
planning for adult life starts early is person-centred and aspirational.

The National Context
Since the introduction of the Children and Families Act reforms in 2014, we have used data
to better understand our SEND children and young people so that we are able to
commission the right education, health and care services. New strategies have been formed
to ensure that provision is improved and more of our children can and will remain in their
local communities, an example of such is the Capital SEND strategy 2020-2025.
Dorset is committed to inclusion in mainstream and we firmly believe every teacher is a
teacher of special needs. Therefore, building the capabilities of our mainstream schools to
support more children and young people with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities will
ensure more children can attend a local school.
Strengthening the capacity of our whole school system, maintained and academies support
more children in mainstream and meeting need at every is at the core of our strategy.
However, we recognise that whilst most children and young people will be supported in a
mainstream school, some need more specialist support in specialist provision.
The Dorset Council Plan 2020-2024 sets out that the Council will provide more specialist
education for children with complex communication and learning needs. The published

Page 51

5

Children and Young People Plan 2020-2023 develops the strategy further within its key
priority area: Best Education for All. This priority area is supported by the Special
Educational Needs and Disabilities Capital Strategy 2020-25, which will create
approximately 500 places across Dorset, including 280 places at the former St Mary’s site,
places will start to be available from January 2022.
There are currently two Free School (Special School) projects underway with the
Department for Education (DfE) to expand specialist provision for Dorset. The first of these is
Harbour School, which is set to create 160 places for children and young people aged 9 – 19
years old. They plan to have 96 places for children and young people with Autistic Spectrum
Condition (ASC) and 64 places for children and young people with high functioning Social,
emotional and mental health needs. The school is currently open with a small number of
students in temporary accommodation while the DfE build a new school on the old Bovington
Middle School site. The project has a planned completion date of September 2022.
The second project is a planned 75 place free school which was granted a capital allocation
in 2019. The DfE have undertaken a long-term feasibility study on a site and are now
working toward the opening of a new Special Free School in Osprey Quay in September
2023 which will support children and young people with SEND in the 14-19 age range.
Over the last 12 months we have worked with Dorset Parent Carer Council, our early years
settings, schools, and other education providers to identify the changing needs of our SEND
population. We have listened to what we need to improve in our local services so that we
can meet the needs of our SEND children and families. The introduction of our Locality
teams brings together colleagues from across Early Years, Early Help, Children’s Social
Care, Educational Psychology, SEND and Inclusion services under the leadership of new
Heads of Locality and Strategy that link together with our CCG Health partners. We are
explicit that “SEND is everyone’s business”.
Through the new integrated structure, colleagues work in multi-agency integrated teams with
a line manager for their locality. Everyone in the team has access to the specialist expertise
they need to support children and young people early. The key outcome for our SEND
children and young people, is that the practitioner support they are receiving through our
graduated approach is based locally, in a team that have closer familiarity with the
educational settings, communities and with coordinated across education, health and care.
Specifically, within early years, we have recently changed our approach to Early SEND
Support funding, and this is now open for all children not only those who are accessing 2, 3
or 4-year-olds funding.
Portage Consultants support children where concerns are related to social communication
and associated difficulties that are not age appropriate, significant global developmental and
/ or physical delay or disorder, difficulties associated with a diagnosed medical condition or
syndrome which may indicate long term, complex needs or continued lack of progress
despite targeted interventions having been put into place.

Page 52

6

Our approach allows us to understand more about children’s needs earlier and to use that
information to inform our planning for the next stage in the child’s life in preparation for
moving onto school.
This year, Adults and Children’s Social Care in partnership with Dorset’s Education Service
commissioned a report into the Birth to Settled Adulthood offer (summer 2021). The review
identified the need for an improvement programme. Activity to refresh the joint vision and
priorities across the Dorset partnership, as well as focused work on earlier co-production to
ensure that those young people who require support as they transition to adulthood are able
to be fully involved in their journey.

Progress in Dorset since 2017
Between 23 January and 27 January 2017, Ofsted and the Care Quality Commission (CQC)
conducted a joint inspection of the Dorset local area to judge its effectiveness in
implementing the special educational needs and disability (SEND) reforms set out in the
Children and Families Act 2014. As a result of the findings of the inspection, Her Majesty’s
Chief Inspector (HMCI) determined that a Written Statement of Action was required to
address four areas of significant weakness in the local area’s practice. The former Dorset
County Council (DCC) and the NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) are jointly
responsible for submitting the written statement.
As part of Ofsted’s revisit in February 2019, inspectors were of the opinion that local area
had made sufficient progress in two of the four areas identified, however the local area had
not made sufficient progress to improve the two remaining areas of weaknesses and
sustained the Written Statement of Action.
The Department for Education met with the Local Area the on 11 January 2021 to discuss
progress against the Local Area’s Accelerated Progress Plan. In response to the progress
made by the Local Area, the Department for Education stated that:
•
•

“We are reassured that the strength and commitment of current leaders within the LA
and CCG will continue improvements across the SEND system throughout Dorset.”
“Based on the evidence provided, the Department and NHS England have concluded
that you have demonstrated clear and sustained progress. This means that Dorset
no longer requires formal monitoring of its SEND system.”

The consensus of the Department for Education’s view with that of the Local Area’s own
self-assessment of the progress made since monitoring began, demonstrates the strength
and commitment of the local area leadership to continue improvements across the SEND
system throughout Dorset.

Page 53

7

The Local Context – SEND Statistics and Dorset
The total population of Dorset is 378,508 (2019 mid-year estimate), this includes 74,765
children and young people aged 0-19 representing 20% of the total population (89,573 aged
0-24).
We have 159 schools in Dorset - 1 All through School, 36 First Schools, 2 Infant Schools, 2
Junior Schools, 10 Middle Schools, 80 Primary Schools, 4 Pupil Referral Units, 15
Secondary Schools, 6 Special Schools and 3 Upper Schools. There are 34 different
languages spoken in Dorset schools. 5% of school age children are from black and minority
ethnic communities compared to 35% nationally.

Early years age children – SEND profile (January 2020)
From school census data 2020/21 the most common primary need for children under 5 is
speech, language, and communication needs (639 children, 10% have an EHCP in place)
followed by Social, Emotional and Mental Health (102 children, 15% have an EHCP in
place). The majority of these children receive SEN Support.

In the January 2021 early years census, 78 children under 5 were able to access further
support through Disability Access Funding in their local setting. A total of 5,945 children
accessed 2, 3 and 4-year-old early education funding.
In 2020-21, 205 children were supported to access early education and childcare through
their early years setting applying for Early SEND Support funding. 29% of this cohort are
boys who have communication and language needs and 7% are girls. 5% of the cohort are
boys with PSED and 2.5% are girls.

School Age children and Young People – SEND Profile Statistics (July 2021)
The profile of SEND and educational outcomes in Dorset shows that

Page 54

8

4% of our children in Dorset Schools have an Education, Care and Health plan with a further
14% accessing SEN Support. These figures are in line with the National profile for EHCPs
at: 4%, the SEN Support national average is 12% meaning that Dorset is slightly higher in
this regard. The table shows how this picture has changed over time.
Total SEN

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Dorset

16%

16%

18%

17%

15%

18%

South West

15%

15%

16%

15%

16%

17%

National

14%

14%

15%

15%

15%

16%

Gender: Children with SEND are more likely to be boys; 64% of Dorset SEND are boys
(62% SEN Support and 73% EHCP) – this is in line with National and South West. There are
variations by primary need: for Autism Spectrum Condition it is 75% and for Speech and
Language Difficulties it is 72%.
Free School Meals: 18% of children are FSM Eligible in Dorset, 30% of SEN Support are
and 36% of EHC. As with Gender there are differences by primary need: 41% of SEMH
children are eligible for FSM.
Deprivation: The Income deprivation indicator affecting children index (IDACI) splits all
areas in the country into 10 deciles. Whilst Dorset is amongst the least deprived areas in the
country there are areas of deprivation within the county. SEND children tend to come from
areas with higher deprivation – 19% of PMLD children live in the 2 most deprived deciles,
compared to 7% of non-SEND children; for SEMH children it is 13%.

The table below shows our SEND children and young people by school year.

SEND by School Year
40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%
R

1

2

3

4

5

Education, health and care (EHC)

6

7
SEN support

Page 55

8

9

10

11

12

13

No Special Provision

9

For our Post 16 learners at FE College or Specialist post 16 institutions the following applies:
•

Number 16-24 year old Dorset residents with EHCP learning at FE Colleges - 325

•

Number 16-24 year old Dorset residents with EHCP learning at Special Post 16
institutions – 134.

We celebrate the work of our sixth forms and colleges and are continuing to build on our
strong relationships with them to look at how we can enhance their provision.

Areas of Need
The first most common primary need in Dorset is Autism Spectrum Condition (ASC) (28% of
the EHCP cohort); the national average is 30%. The second most common primary need is
Social, Emotional and Mental Health (SEMH) at21% of the EHCP cohort; the national
average is 14%. The third most common primary need is Speech, Language and
Communications needs (SLCN) - 16% of the EHCP cohort; the national average is 15%.
Together these primary needs make up 65% of the cohort.
The table overleaf shows how primary need changes by school year. It demonstrates that
Speech, Language and Communication Needs (SLCN) are distributed more towards primary
years, whilst specific learning difficulties are towards the older years.

Primary Need distribution by School Year
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%
R

1
MSI

2
PMLD

3
VI

4
SLD

5
HI

PD

6

7

NSA

OTH

8
ASD

9

10

MLD

SEMH

11

12
SPLD

13

14

SLCN

Educational settings for children and young people with an EHCP
Dorset’s profile for education placements for our children young people is broadly similar to
the profile in the South West. We have 41% of our children and young people with SEND
accessing education in mainstream settings, compared with 43% in the South West and
40% nationally. A further 34% are placed in special schools compared to 31% in the South
West and 36% nationally. 13% of our young people are in receipt of education through

Page 56

10

Further Education colleges compared to 16% in the South West and 17% nationally, Dorset
currently has 3% accessing Alternative Provision which is a higher profile when compared
with the South West at 1% and the national profile at 1%, our Not in Employment, Education
or Training (NEET) cohort currently stands at 2% and is below the South West average at
4% and national average at 2.5%.
The remaining percentages constitutes those who are either within Early Years Provision or
being Electively Home Educated or Educated Elsewhere. The profile for these placements
follows national and South West trends.
This means that a focus is needed to reduce the number of children and young people in
Alternative provision through an increase in focus on inclusive education in our mainstream
settings. We must also focus on ensuring that more of our young people can access Further
Education in their communities to support their future plans.

Educational Outcomes for children and young people with SEND (data is 2019 due to
delays from COVID Education data sets)
Nationally and in Dorset children and young people with SEND do not achieve academically
in line with their peers across all phases of education. This is a key area of focus for the
Council. The information below provides an overview of Dorset’s current educational
outcomes:
•

At the end of reception year 4% of EHCP children achieve a ‘Good Level of
Development, this compares to 5% nationally. Positively 38% of our SEN Support
children achieve this level, compared to 29% nationally.

•

For the year 1 phonics assessment the pattern is similar. 13% of EHC children in
Dorset (20% nationally) and 52% of SEN Support (48% nationally) achieve a pass.

•

At Key Stage 1 both groups outperform the national picture, in Maths for example
18% of EHC and 40% of EHC achieve the expected standard; compared to 14% and
36% nationally.

•

At Key Stage 2 All Dorset children tend to underperform compared to the national,
and this is also true for SEND children. Progress from Key Stage 1 to Key Stage 2 is
below average and 20% of SEND children achieve the expected standard in reading,
writing and mathematics, compared to 20% nationally.

•

Key Stage 4 based on centre assessed grades at LA level were released for 2020.
These are detailed below. The table below shows percentage achieved for Any SEN
at Grade 4 our higher and then provides the percentage achieved for our EHCP and
SEN support cohort.

Page 57

11

Grade 4 or higher in GCSE English &
Maths

2020

Dorset

South West

National

No SEN

79%

79%

78%

Any SEN

31%

35%

33%

SEN State EHC

12%

15%

14%

SEN Support

37%

41%

40%

•

Whilst non-SEN children achieved grade 4 or higher in GCSE English & Maths in line
or higher than the national this is not matched by SEND pupils.

•

Key Stage 5 performance (based on SEND status in year 11) based on the
percentage of 19 year olds qualified to Level 2 with English & Maths shows that all
SEN children overall outperform the national (37% compared to 31%), although this
is driven largely by good performance of SEN Support children: EHC children in
Dorset achieved 12% compared to national 15% have the highest rates of exclusion
(DfE, 2016).

Exclusion Data for Children with SEND
The tables below show the exclusion levels for children and young people with SEND in
Dorset. Please note that this data covers the COVID period where many of our SEND
children and young people were not at school and therefore this affects the numbers
significantly.

Page 58

12

Page 59

13

It is clear from the information above that more must be done to support inclusive practice
for our SEND children and young people as they are disproportionately over represented
when compared with children without SEND.

Page 60

14

Health’s Commitment to Children and Young People with SEND in Dorset
Dorset Clinical Commissioning Groups (DCCG) Statement of Intent commits to:
•

Commissioning services in partnership with our Local Authorities for children and
young people aged 0-25 years old with SEND.

•

Contributing to the Local Offer to include information about health care services.

•

Working in partnership with Parent Carer Forums, support groups representing
young people with SEND, Health Watch, the voluntary sector and community groups.

•

Ensuring there is health care provision as specified in the Education, Health and
Care Plan (EHCP) as part of our commissioning role.

Our NHS Health organisations commit to:
•

Supporting the identification of children and young people requiring SEND provision.

•

Responding to requests for advice for EHCPs within the required time frame and to
review EHCPs when invited to.

•

Work with the Local Authorities to contribute to the local offer of services available.

•

Working closely with Parent Carer Forums, support groups representing young
people with SEND, Health Watch, the voluntary sector and community groups.

•

Contributing to regular reviews of children and young people with EHCPs.

Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group works in partnership with Local Authorities, providers
and Parent Carer Forums to continually develop a shared vision and strategy to ensure the
development of integrated, Child and young person focussed pathways. Our shared vision
and strategy for children and young people with SEND are in line with the NHS long term
plan and has a focus on improved outcomes for children and their families
The NHS long term plan sets out a vision for the future of the NHS noting that children and
young people represent a third of our country. A key message from stakeholders during the
development of the long-term plan was that the needs of children are diverse, complex and
need a higher profile at a national level. Dorset CCG have heard similar messages from our
local stakeholders, that the needs of Dorset CYP need a higher profile at a local level.
The national CYP transformation programme has been established to oversee the
commitments of the NHS long term plan with a focus on integrating services, improving the
quality of care to CYP with long term conditions, such as (obesity and asthma) identifying
local system priorities and reducing inequalities.
Dorset CCG will work with partners to align areas of improvement, The NHS long term plan
and the SEND reforms are interdependent, for example there is a higher percentage of
SEND CYP seen in obesity groups in Dorset and by working together with partners the
Dorset system can support inclusion and enable access for all, including supporting
parents/carers.

Page 61

15

Children with SEND are often supported by a variety of health professionals, including
universal services available to all such as GP and pharmacies as well as specialised
services that may include Paediatricians, Physiotherapists, Occupational Therapists and
Speech and Language Therapy. There is scope for improved joint commissioning, delivery
of services and working between health and all partners to improve outcomes for children
and young people.
Dorset CCG is committed to the development of our workforce who working directly with our
children and young people. Additional training and support for health providers to
understand the range of need and provide high quality, timely contributions to the EHC
process has been developed with our partners and will contribute to improving outcomes.
Dorset CCG aims to support all people in Dorset to lead healthier lives, this reflects a need
to prevent illness and also reduce health inequalities for our population. A key part of
reducing health inequalities for our Children and Young People is via the Learning Disability
register, which enables reasonable adjustments to be noted and the availability of Annual
Health checks which are available to all people with a diagnosed Learning Disability from
age 14 onwards.
The 2021-22 data for quarters 1 and 2 indicates an increase in the uptake of Annual Health
checks, compared to 2020-21. There is a Dorset wide commitment to further increase this
uptake by raising awareness of the register and checks amongst young people, considering
alternative ways of offering the checks, such as within the school setting for example and
creating young people training and resources for GP practices.

Page 62

16

Our Priorities
Working with Dorset Parent Carer Council and Dorset’s Strategic Alliance Group we have
identified a set of strategic priorities for the next two years for the Local Area partners
including Education, Health.
These strategic priorities build on the work and progress which has taken place over the last
18 months and are designed to strengthen our SEND system further, at pace.
Progress against the priorities and associated actions will be reported through the Best
Education for All Sub-group of the Children and Young Peoples’ plan. This will take the form
of a quarterly report from the Local Authority and DCO from Health.

1. Early
Identification and
Support

6. Managing Money
and Resources

2. Inclusion
SEND Children and
their Families are
happy, healthy and
achieve

5. Transitions and
Preparation for
Adulthood

3. SEND Pathway

4. SEND Sufficiency
& Provision

Page 63

17

Priority One: Early Identification and Support
Vision:
We will ensure that children’s needs are identified, assessed and supported both early in life
and when issues arise.
Outcomes:
•

Our early help and intervention support results in families being supported at first
need with fewer needing an Education Care and Health needs assessment.

•

Parent carers and young people know when SEN Support is in place and are
involved in creating and reviewing their SEN Support Plan.

•

The Graduated approach is understood and used by all parents, carers and
professionals when supporting families. Parents understand the system better and
know how to access support.
A Parent/Carer friendly version of the Graduated Approach in Dorset is in place.

•
•
•
•

There will be an increased awareness of Early Help, intervention and inclusion
across the county in all key professional roles.
Children, young people and their families are able to access immediate advice and
support.
There will be a consistent offer and range of services and interventions for emotional
health and wellbeing, applying the iThrive Framework. THRIVE is a framework for
emotional health and Mental Health developed by the Anna Freud National Centre
for Children and Families and the Tavistock and Portman NHS Foundation Trust. The
THRIVE framework is an integrated, person centred, and needs led approach to
delivering mental health services for children, young people and their families. It
conceptualises need in five categories; Thriving, Getting Advice and Signposting,
Getting Help, Getting More Help and Getting Risk Support. This approach has
been used to develop whole school approaches for emotional health and wellbeing –
I Can Problem Solve, Academic Resilience Approach, Mental health Support Teams
in Schools

Priority
Number

Action:

P1/001

Launch the Dorset Education and Advice Line so that children, young
people and their families can access immediate support to discuss their
worries and concerns. We will monitor key themes or concerns and adapt
the Local Offer as required to improve access to support and advice.

P1/002

Ensure that all Education Health Care Needs Assessments are responded
to within the statutory expected timeframes and that a tracker system is in
place and consistently used keeping parents informed of progress.

Page 64

18

P1/003

During Academic Year 2021/22 carry out regular SENCO briefings on the
Graduated Approach and provide focused training support where needed
for all Early Years, Schools and Further Education settings and use the
Graduated Approach in their daily practice. This will mean that parents and
carers feel better supported.

P1/004

Work with Early Years settings to develop guidance for applications for
delayed entry to school and applications to place children out of year group
that fully considers the longer-term implications for children with SEND.

P1/005

Work with Dorset Parent Carer Council to ensure that co-production takes
place for all key services pertaining to early help and identification i.e.
policy changes and is represented at all key decision-making points with a
focus on improving the Local Offer.

P1/006

Achieve an increased awareness in early years, education, health and care
settings of inclusion issues and strategies / interventions. This will support
vulnerable children and young people and adults with LD. It will be
delivered through an inclusion training offer from the Outreach Inclusion
team alongside our education and early help teams and close working with
the Paediatric Team, Mental Health Support teams in schools, ID-CAMHS
(SWIFTS) and the Dorchester Opportunity Early Years Setting. Local data
will be used to focus on high need areas,

P1/007

To ensure that all early years and school SENCOs and SENCO leads are
aware of the need to review their SEN support plans as well as all
Education Health and Care Plans; this will be delivered as part of SENCO
support and Graduated Approach training.

P1/008

Utilising locality trend data on attendance, absence and exclusions we will
work with schools to ensure that children’s SEN and care status are fully
considered in relation to school policies, including behaviour and
safeguarding practice.

P1/009

All interventions and services that provide support for emotional health and
wellbeing use the Thrive Framework in their approach and documentation.

P1/010

The Mental Health teams in Schools will work in partnership with education
settings to meet the needs of children and young people with mild to
moderate presentations via advice, support and whole school approaches
in line with the Thrive Framework. Clear information is available on the
service offer and pathways for access to CAMHS as well as referral criteria.
Investment in expanding access to community based mental health
services. View seeking work on mental health services for children and

Page 65

19

young people has been completed with stakeholders, including service
users and parents/carers.
P1/011

A new model of speech, language and communication provision will be
delivered in Dorset. The new model will promote improved early
identification through the provision of high-quality materials and information
to parents, carers and the wider workforce about general child development
and specific speech, language and communication development. The
model will also include strong universal and targeted provision to ensure
that every child and young person receives the level of support matched to
need.

P1/012

The All-age Autism Pathway review will bring about rapid improvement
across the whole system, strengthening the pathways and support offer for
children and young people with neurodevelopmental disorders. The outputs
from the review will include a pathway that provides early assessment of
need, rather than diagnosis, support, pre, during and post assessment,
transition and an education and training model to support a better
understanding of Autism across the system,

P1/013

To increase the uptake of Annual Health Checks for young people over the
age of 14 years of age with a diagnosis of a learning disability by raising
awareness of the register and checks amongst young people, considering
alternative ways of offering the checks, such as within the school setting for
example and creating young people training and resources for GP
practices.

P1/014

To continue to develop high quality health pathways for Early Years to
enable early identification of needs and improved outcomes for. Priority
areas include continuation of partnership working between SALT, Public
Health Nursing, (Health Visiting) Portage and all partners in Early Years
settings.

Page 66

20

Priority Two: Inclusion
Vision:
We will ensure that across Dorset that there is a commitment to deliver inclusive services
and support for and with children, young people and adults with SEND.
Dorset is committed to inclusion in mainstream settings and we firmly believe every teacher
is a teacher of special needs. Therefore, building the capabilities of our mainstream schools
to support more children and young people with SEND will ensure more children can attend
a local school. Strengthening the capacity of our maintained school system to support more
children in mainstream and meeting need at the lowest level is at the core of our strategy.

Outcomes:
•

•
•
•
•

•

Working with our Early Years and Schools settings we will agree an approach for a
future Inclusion Fund for Early Years and School settings to support practice
innovation in increasing the numbers of our SEND children in mainstream settings.
There will be a reduction in the number of children and young people with SEND
placed in specialist provision and out of county high cost placements.
Our early years, schools’ and Further Education Colleges’ confidence to work with
and support our children and young people with SEND grows.
We will focus on those children with a EHCP and without a school place and ensure
provision is secured.
We will realise a reduction in the number of children and young people accessing
Alternative Provision arrangements and those who are Not in Employment Education
or Training (NEET).
There will be no permanent exclusions of children and young people with SEND and
a reduction in fixed term exclusions.

Priority Action:
Number
P2/001

Working with Schools to develop and agree an Education and Inclusion
strategy. To co-produce and promote, including with early years settings and
schools, a Dorset wide self-assessment tool for Inclusion. This will cover best
practice for children and young people with SEND and across all categories of
need this will consider how health services can support inclusion.

P2/002

Ensure that 100% of Annual Reviews of Education Health and Care Plans take
place each year and that there is an improved focus on co-produced SMART
outcomes and that this is embedded across all key statutory partners. This
includes the timeliness of any amendments within the plan.

Page 67

21

P2/003

Introduce and embed a revised Multi-Agency Quality Assurance process
across the partnership reviewing the quality of Annual Reviews so that each
agency is held to account for local service improvements and that the
experience of the child is understood.

P2/004

To embed processes and tracking systems to ensure that there are no children
and young people with SEND without a school place or provision for more than
6 weeks and that those known to the service are reviewed through the Children
Missing Out on Education processes.

P2/005

To co-produce a multi-agency training package for Social Care staff on SEND
and Inclusion and for SEND teams on Social Care. This will enable better
understanding and delivery of services to families across the system this will
include all services from Early Years through to specialist services.

P2/006

To review the services to our NEET children and ensure that this priority group
are supported within SEN services (Education and Advocacy) and Adult Social
Care.

P2/007

To review the current use of Alternative Provision arrangements and reduce
these where possible. To review the Alternative Provision framework and
recommission this service with a revised framework.

P2/008

Working with Inclusion Teams to ensure that the voice and experience of the
child is understood in the context of inclusion and share at the Best Education
for All Board.

P2/009

To ensure that the Local Offer provides up to date, relevant information
regarding universal and specialist services for parents and carers to easily
access.

P2/010

To carry out SEN reviews in priority schools where the achievement gap for
children with SEN is the greatest and higher levels of exclusion.

P2/011

Launch the Local Area Partnership agreement and ensure that all stakeholders
are committed to this agreement and focus on ensuring the needs of our SEND
children and young people are considered at key decision points.

P2/012

Set Up Innovation Inclusion Fund for SEND working in collaboration with
Schools and EY settings.

Page 68

22

Priority Three: SEND Pathway
Vision:
We will ensure that children and young people with SEND, and their families can access the
right support from services - easily and quickly.
Outcome:
•

Joint working and joint commissioning arrangements are in place that recognises the
value of working together to provide a seamless and effective service which will
benefit the community and prevent children and young people falling through the
gaps.

•

•
•

•
•
•
•

•
•

We will have clear partnership and decision-making arrangements to jointly
commission services for children and young people, with mechanisms for agreeing
priorities for the commissioning of services.
The Local Offer will be improved and enable families in understanding and navigating
their needs.
There will be a reduction in the duplication of meetings and families will only need to
tell their story once using technology to broaden access and coordination of our
work.
Short break and respite opportunities for children and adults are available and meet
the needs of families.
Children and Young People with an EHCP will have their primary need clearly and
accurately identified as a result of evidence gathered in professional advice.
Health Advice will be high quality and provided in a timely way to contribute to the
EHC process that includes the Annual Review.
Health commissioned services for SEND will meet statutory requirements and the
needs of the local area by delivering integrated effective and quality pathways.
Children and Young People with SEND will have their health needs met at the right
time, in the right place, by the right person through integrated pathways.
There are clear pathways to support joint working between partner agencies and
families to enable early and appropriate identification of SEND across all settings.
The system will understand the impact of services/provision on the outcomes for
children and young people through agreed system measures and outcomes across
the partnership.

Priority Action:
Number
P3/001

A new model of speech, language and communication provision will be
delivered in Dorset based on a joint commissioning strategy. The new model
will promote improved early identification. The model will also include strong

Page 69

23

universal and targeted provision to ensure that every child and young person
receives the level of support matched to need.
P3/002

We will review the Short Breaks offer that is available to Dorset families with the
aim of increasing the amount and variety of provision to meet the individual
needs of children.

P3/003

Working with Dorset Parent Carer Council and Dorset CCG to agree the
necessary changes on the Local Offer. To relaunch the Local Offer and ensure
that reach and performance data is reviewed quarterly at Best Education for All
meeting. To ensure that the Local Offer remains well resourced, updated and
is reported as high priority asset for our SEND parents and carers.

P3/004

Dorset Council to develop its Workforce strategy with partners, ensuring that all
key delivery roles working with children and young people with SEND have
access to and receive appropriate training.

P3/005

To ensure that Health are represented at key panels e.g., Locality and Multi
Agency Resource Panel (MARP) so that joint decisions are made in a
consistent, timely and efficient manner.

P3/006

Dorset Council’s Getting to Good SEND plan is delivered against and key
statutory measures and operational metrics are improved for each locality in
Dorset.

P3/007

The profile of SEND in the wider community will be raised by developing a
SEND Communications Strategy with partners. This will use a ‘values’-based
approach to engage with providers and the community on the positive impact
disabled people can make on the workforce and society.

P3/008

All staff within the Virtual School will work closely with the locality SEND teams
and Children in Care teams to ensure that all Children in Care are attending
school and are appropriately supported.

P3/009

Every School will have a nominated Educational Psychologist to support each
setting in identifying whole school and individual case specific approaches for
supporting SEND pupils in their mainstream setting.

P3/010

We will ensure that we keep our SEND children at the heart of our decisions
and that the local pathway and provision is understood across all services e.g.
Early Help, Social Care teams. All new Social Workers and Early Help Workers
will have an induction programme with the SEND teams.

P3/011

To deliver the Mental Health Teams model across all Schools, offering advice,
support and whole school approaches to support Children and Young People
with mild to moderate emotional and mental health needs.

Page 70

24

P3/012

Analyse the high SEMH profile (primary area of need) in Dorset and review the
pathway through focused audits to identify what areas of improvement are
needed across the system and align with the Pan-Dorset Emotional Health and
Wellbeing strategy.

P3/013

The CCG will improve its data systems to predict need and to plan effectively
how we will meet the needs of children and young people in Dorset,
considering both clinical and non-clinical factors.

Page 71

25

Priority Four: SEND Sufficiency and Provision
Vision:
To ensure that the Education provision for all children and young people with SEND is
increased so that our children can stay in Dorset and thrive in their local communities. This
includes access to Health services, Early Years, Post-16, and adults with Learning
Disabilities (LD).
Outcomes:
•

A joint commissioning strategy for children and young people with SEND and adults
with LD will be in place.

•

We will have a clear evidence base that supports the allocation of funding to further
develop our specialist provision and services.

•

There is a reduction of delays in families accessing Health services such as initial
assessments for neuro diverse presentations.

•

There is an improvement in the waiting times for specific health services where there
is the greatest demand and a timely response for Children, Young People, their
families and carers.
More of our young people are accessing further education opportunities in
mainstream settings.
There is a reduction in the number of specialist out of county placements.

•
•

Priority
Number

Action:

P4/001

Deliver against the Dorset Council SEND Capital Strategy 2020-2025 to
ensure that there is an increase in local provision in key areas and that
efficiencies of spend are realised.

P4/002

To open St Mary’s and ensure that this new provision meets the expected
service level standards and reduces the need for out of area placements with
a reduction in the average placement cost for these children or young people.

P4/003

Dorset Council’s Children’s Commissioning team and Dorset CCG will
contribute towards the Children’s Chapter for the Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment chapter on Children with Disabilities. The chapter will be in place
and linked to Health and Well Being Board, Strategic Alliance and Joint
Commissioning Board.

P4/004

To develop our SEMH offer to support children to stay in mainstream
provision. Working with Inclusion Leads and our Educational Psychologists we
will engage specialist support to work at an earlier stage with children to
stabilise placements and prevent exclusion.

Page 72

26

P4/005

To develop the emotional health and wellbeing pathway in line with the
THRIVE framework and the EHWB strategy, with a focus on expanding
access to community based mental health services including the development
of a Dorset Gateway Service, developing services to meet the needs of 16–
25-year-olds and the development of a crisis offer to support admission
avoidance.

P4/006

To conclude the Pan Dorset Health review of the specific Health services that
are currently under pressure due to sufficiency issues e.g., Speech and
Language Services and Autism Spectrum Condition diagnosis and support.
Our future vision is for greater access and improved support for all, with or
without a diagnosis (2022).

P4/007

Dorset Council to collate accurate data by locality for all SEND educational
and/or residential packages to ensure analysis by setting or categorisation of
need to drive improvement areas to reduce high cost and out of area
placements.

P4/008

Dorset CCG to embed an agreed minimum data set for SEND Key
Performance Indicators to ensure a clear line of reporting into the
organisation, with clear links to future commissioning intentions

P4/009

For Health and the Local Authority to work together within and across
partners, to secure cost-effective commissioning of placements outside of
Dorset reviewing placement profiles to develop local provision where possible.
With a recognition that placements outside of Dorset may still be required for a
small number of children in exceptional circumstances.

P4/010

Services within Health, and particularly those significantly impacted by COVID,
e.g., Direct Therapies such as Physiotherapy and Speech and Language, are
undergoing Reset and Recovery programmes.

P4/011

To work with Adults Commissioning to support the birth to settled adulthood
programme ensuring that tracking systems are in place across children's and
adults services to ensure person centred support focused on outcomes.

Page 73

27

Priority Five: Transitions and Preparation for Adulthood Vision:
Transitions:
We will ensure that transitions between phases of education or changes in provision and
support across all ages are smooth and supportive.
Preparation for Adulthood:
We expect that young people with SEND should have equal life chances as they move into
adulthood. This includes employment and higher education, housing options and
independent living, good health, friends, relationships, community inclusion and choice and
control over their lives and support.

Outcomes:
•
•

•
•

•

For children or young people moving from one phase of education to another
transition will be timely, well planned and person centred.
The Multi-agency independently led Dorset Birth to Settled Adulthood Board will lead
the improvement programme that will deliver a vision and ambitious change for those
young people who need additional support as they move into adulthood.
A 14 to 25 co-produced pathway that includes Education, Health and Care will be in
place which ensures a person-centred approach based on individual outcomes.
We will have increased employment and training opportunities for young people and
adults with SEND through improved engagement in our communities measured by a
reduction of young people who are Not in Employment, Education or Training (NEET)
with an EHCP.
An increase of our young people accessing mainstream provision thereby increasing
their potential to build strong community ties.

Priority
Number

Action:

P5/001

To ensure that 100% of Annual Reviews for children in transition years are
held by end of Autumn Term each year and are attended by a Provision Lead
from the Council.

P5/002

To ensure that 100% of Year 9 Annual Reviews have taken place by end of
Spring* term.

P5/003

To provide training to all SENCOs across Dorset for Year 9 Annual Reviews to
ensure that School lead Annual Reviews are of high quality and focus on
future goals and preparation for adulthood outcomes.

Page 74

28

P5/004

To continue to build our strategic relationships with Further Education
Colleges to ensure that more of our SEND young people can successfully
access courses and independent learning in their local community and are
engaged with their future plans by the end of the Spring term.

P5/005

To contribute towards the development of the birth to settled adulthood service
review and ensure that key transition points are understood across SEND
teams. We will ensure that Annual Reviews after year 9 focus on developing
a young person’s plan towards adulthood with a person-centred approach.

P5/006

Our SEND Services and Children who are Disabled (CWAD) Social Care
services work together with Health and Adult Social Care to develop clear
plans for the four key areas of Preparation for Adulthood through the Birth to
Settled Adulthood Strategy; namely; Education and Employment, Independent
Living, Community Inclusion and Health.

P5/007

To ensure that all young people are included in the Adult Social Care
Transitions Tracker (as part of Preparation for Adulthood/ Birth to Settled
Adulthood) mechanism to ensure that key parties are engaged at the earliest
opportunity to support the pathway to adult life.

Page 75

29

Priority Six: Managing Money and Resources
Introduction to Finance and the budget for supporting our SEND children in Dorset
The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) for 2021-22 for Dorset is £280.2m., this is the money
we receive to support Education in Dorset. The DSG comprises four blocks of grant:
1. The Schools Block which is funding for mainstream schools;
2. the Early Years Block which is funding for 3 and 4 year olds and the 40% most
deprived 2 year olds entitlement to 15 or 30 hours of free nursery education;
3. the High Needs Block, which for 2021-22 is £42.3m for pupils with Special
Educational Needs and Disabilities; and
4. the Central Schools Service Block which provides funding of some local authority
services for schools to support maintained schools.
The High Needs Block has been overspending for five years; this is a similar picture
nationally. As at 2020-21 the cumulative deficit totalled £39.1m. Dorset Council has been
spending a higher proportion of its budget on Independent or non-maintained special
schools (INMSS) than its statistical neighbours. Despite this cost pressure, all statistical
neighbours are incurring significant deficits.
This scenario has brought a continued focus and urgency to the implementation of Dorset
Council’s High Needs Block Management Strategy.
Vision:
To ensure the effective and efficient management of SEN funding available through the
Dedicated Schools Grant, to maximise the impact of the available resource and the best
outcomes for our children and young people.
Outcomes:
•

•

•

To reduce the costs to the Dedicated Schools Grant and associated Council revenue
budgets through the completion of the SEND Capital Strategy in partnership with all
stakeholders.
To establish a High Needs Block locality budget tracking system to support local
teams in better understanding spend and subsequently to identify new opportunities
for refocusing investment on early help or more local provision.
Increased multi-agency oversight of transition to adulthood (including health,
housing, education, community safety, children and adult social care).

Priority
Number

Action:

Page 76

30

P6/001

Develop a joint commissioning protocol with Health that ensures
commissioning decisions on specialist placements outside of the LA area will
be made with all agencies supporting the child or adult with Learning
Disabilities. These placements will only be made on the evidence that the
child or adult’s needs cannot be met locally and agreed at the Multi Agency
Resource Panel.

P6/002

To work collaboratively with schools and colleges to agree a consistent way of
funding schools/settings where the number of high needs pupils attending
cannot be reflected adequately in their formula funding.

P6/003

To review the commissioning arrangements for Learning Centres and
Resource provision to ensure cost efficiencies are realised.

P6/004

To refine the DSG forecasting processes to ensure that the system is dynamic
and responsive to changes throughout the year.

P6/005

Place children in Coombe House School in Shaftesbury in order to support
more local places and a reduction in associated high cost out of county
placements.

P6/006

To deliver the expansion of Beaucroft Special School to realise an additional
80 places with a particular focus on those in post-16 education.

P6/007

To review future feasibility projects for the expansion of existing special
schools and other specialist resource provision.

P6/008

To support the development of new Free School provision in the County for
specialist provision e.g. Harbour School and future Free School applications.

P6/009

To establish a financial tracking system for SEND across the system at a
localities level and to further explore alternative ways to manage the High
Needs Block for EHC Plans.

P6/010

To introduce a new commissioning framework for Alternative Provision.

P6/011

Childrens and Adults to coproduce a financial dashboard to ensure robust
transition planning for this cohort alongside clear financial forecasts.

Page 77

31

How we will make sure this is delivered
The progress of this strategy will be reviewed at the Best Education for All Steering Group
and the Dorset Birth to Settled Adulthood Board. A quarterly progress report detailing
evidence and impact of action points will be presented for each of the priority areas. This
information will be presented by the Strategic Lead for SEND within Dorset and the
Designated Clinical Officer (DCO) from the CCG.
A SEND performance dashboard will be created which will focus on quantitative measures
such as timeliness of needs assessments, annual review and exclusion data and a place for
discussion against progress against transformation processes, for example, All-Age Autism
Review and Birth to Settled Adulthood process. The scorecard and reporting structure will
be co-produced with Dorset Parent Carer Council to ensure that we are presenting the right
level of information to our communities.
We will use the same indicators as in our Local Partnership Agreement to review progress
and ensure continued co-production in the delivery of this strategy. We will also monitor and
evaluate to ensure that effective co-production is happening:
•

Evidence
All partners who have engaged in co-production should be able to see their work
within whatever is produced or undertaken. This includes detailing the contributions
in service specifications, policies and procedures.

•

Evaluate
We will gather feedback to ensure that all stakeholders feel that their voices have
been heard and that they have been able to make a difference. This will take the
form of an Annual Conversation survey and focus group for SEND children, families
and their carers.

•

Audit
All services and teams working with children, young people and young adults with
SEND will complete an annual participation audit with a focus on improving
participation. We will also ensure that there is a clear audit trail of impact through the
Multi-Agency Quality assurance processes for SEND.

Page 78

32

Page 79

33

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
People and Health Overview Committee
24th March 2022
Children’s Commissioning Strategy
For Recommendation to Cabinet
Portfolio Holder:
Help

Cllr A Parry, Children, Education, Skills and Early

Local Councillor(s):

All

Executive Director:

T Leavy, Executive Director of People - Children

Report Author: Claire Shiels
Title: Corporate Director, Commissioning and Partnerships
Tel: 01305 224682
Email: claire.shiels@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk
Report Status: Public
Recommendation: The Committee is asked to comment on the 5-year
Commissioning Strategy and support the intended approach.
Reason for Recommendation: Effective strategic commissioning is the main
way to understand, plan and deliver better outcomes for residents. This strategy
sets the direction for commissioning activity that will support our strategic aims to
improve the well-being of children in Dorset over the next five years.
1.

Executive Summary

The core purpose of this strategy is to ensure we provide the best start to life for
all children and the right support at the right time for vulnerable children and
young people. It seeks to create a shared vision across a wide range of partners,
including GPs, the police, schools and the voluntary and community sector, in
order to create a whole system approach to strengthen the service offer to meet
all levels of need. We want children, young people and their families to
experience a positive journey through a system of services that builds their
resilience and enables them to meet their full potential.
There are 3 priorities for delivery:

Page 81

I.

Ensure there are sufficient, quality services for children, young people and
families through:
a. Ensuring sufficient local provision to meet needs
b. Supporting a strong and vibrant voluntary and community sector
c. Market development to ensure the provider market offers value for
money, person centred provision and choice
d. Implementing effective quality assurance processes

II.

Improve outcomes for children and young people across their life-course
through:
a. The development of whole life commissioning approaches
b. Joint commissioning arrangements with partners including health
and adult services
c. Implementation of whole family approaches
d. Development of networks of support from Family Hubs

III.

Continued investment in early intervention through:
a. Delivery of a Digital Family Offer high-quality information provision
and services that supports self-service
b. Implementation of Asset Based Community development
approaches

2.

Financial Implications

All activity carried out under this strategy will be undertaken within existing, or
identified, revenue and grant funding. It will be carried out within the terms of
Dorset Council’s scheme of delegation and financial regulations and will align
with the commercial strategy.
3.

Well-being and Health Implications

The strategy aims to improve the health and well being of children in Dorset.
4.

Climate implications

A core aim of the service is to ensure that more services for children and families
are delivered locally – reducing our travel needs and contributing to a sustainable
local economy.
5.

Other Implications

The strategy seeks to support the development of a strong and vibrant
community and voluntary sector and will deliver a changed service landscape

Page 82

over time, changing the premises for where we deliver our work. Detailed
engagement will be undertaken under specific commissioning work plans.
6.

Risk Assessment

Having considered the risks associated with this decision, the level of risk has
been identified as:
Current Risk: Low
Residual Risk: Low
The risks associated with specific commissioning proposals will be assessed as
part of the relevant governance process.
7.

Equalities Impact Assessment

EQIAs will be carried out for specific commissioning proposals.
8.

Appendices

Appendix 1: Children’s Commissioning Strategy
9.

Background Papers

Dorset Council’s Plan 2020-24
Children, Young People and Families Plan 2020-23
Dorset SEND Strategy 2021-2024
Dorset SEND Capital Strategy 2020-25
Dorset Placement Sufficiency Strategy 2020-2023
Dorset Children and Young People’s Mental Health Strategy 2020-24
Dorset Childcare Sufficiency Strategy 2020-21
Dorset Commercial Strategy – Commissioning and Procurement 2021
A Whole new World: Funding and Commissioning In Complexity
Green Paper: Transforming Public Procurement
Transforming Public Procurement: Government response to consultation
Asset-Based Community Development for Local Authorities

Footnote:
Issues relating to financial, legal, environmental, economic and equalities
implications have been considered and any information relevant to the decision is
included within the report.

Page 83

Appendix 1: Children’s Commissioning Strategy
Introduction
The core purpose of this strategy is to ensure we provide the best start in life for
all children and the right support at the right time.
It seeks to create a shared vision across a wide range of partners, in order to
create a whole system approach to strengthen the service offer to meet all levels
of need.
We want children, young people and their families to experience a positive
journey through a system of support and services that builds their resilience and
enables them to meet their full potential.
Our vision for children and strategic plans
Dorset Council’s Plan sets out the council’s approach to ensuring Dorset is a
great place to live, work and visit and our partnership vision
is for:
‘Dorset to be the best place to be a child; where
communities thrive, and families are supported to be the best
they can be’.
This vision is being delivered through our Children, Young
People and Families’ Plan 2020-23, led by the Board of the Dorset Strategic
Alliance for Children and Young People, which brings together colleagues from
Dorset Council, Public Health Dorset, Dorset 0-19 Voluntary and Community
Sector Forum, Dorset Youth Offending Services, Dorset CCG, Dorset Healthcare,
Dorset Parent Carer Council, Schools’ representatives and Early Years
representatives and other agencies to deliver on our ambitions for our children.
The Board is chaired by the Lead Member for Children’s Services and co-chaired
by a partner representative.
The delivery of this plan is supported by additional strategies and plans which
include:







Dorset SEND Strategy 2021-2024
Dorset SEND Capital Strategy 2020-25
Dorset Children in Care Placement Sufficiency Strategy 2020-23
Dorset Children and Young People’s Mental Health Strategy 2020-24
Childcare Sufficiency Strategy 2020-21
Dorset Commercial Strategy – Commissioning and Procurement 2021

Page 84

Needs Analysis
Dorset is a beautiful coastal county situated in the South West region of England.
Over half of Dorset is covered by the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
designation. Our children and young people recognise this as a real asset, but
have told us that access to this can be more difficult for those with additional
needs. Spending time in greenspace has many benefits for our health and
wellbeing, and close proximity of greenspace means we can build contact into
our everyday lives. Dorset and the surrounding area has many high quality
outdoor spaces. However, accessibility can be an issue, with 43% of residents
living more then 300m safe walk from a publicly accessible greenspace. Socioeconomic status, age and health can also influence ability to access nature.
The Dorset rural idyll can conceal hidden deprivation, with significant pockets
found mostly in urban coastal areas as well as rural deprivation due to isolation
and difficulty accessing housing, transport, and essential services. The
Department for Work and Pensions estimates that 25% of Dorset’s children are
living in poverty.
Earnings are below average and house prices are high with affordability issues
for many young people and keyworkers. In Dorset the median house price to
earnings ratio is 9.7 (7.8 England) and this one of the highest rates in the South
West. Living in cold, damp, overcrowded or insecure accommodation affects our
health and wellbeing. Securing large enough high quality and affordable housing,
with access to physical space can be a challenge for families across the county.
Dorset has relatively low birth rates and younger people often move away from
the area. Participation of 16- and 17-year olds in employment, education and
training is relatively high, however about 5% of our young people do not and this
can have long lasting economic impact into later life.
We have 159 schools in Dorset and although educational outcomes are broadly
in line with national rates at most phases, the gap between the most
disadvantaged students (including those eligible for free school meals) and their
peers is too high and levels of employment for young people with Special
Educational Needs is too low. Social mobility in Weymouth and Portland is at
one of the lowest levels in the country. Dorset has been designated one of the
55 Education Investment Areas by the Department of Education. There are 80
different languages spoken in Dorset schools. 8% (Jan 2021 school census) of
school age children are from black and minority ethnic communities compared to
35.1% nationally.

Page 85

About 18% of Dorset’s children and young people have special educational
needs and disabilities. We have approximately 3,200 children with Special
Educational Needs supported through an Educational, Health and Care Plan out
of a wider total of 6,500 children and young people identified with SEN Support
needs in our schools.
Children, young people and their families can experience difficulties and needs
support from early help or social care at different stages of their lives. At the end
of December 2021 there were:
1100 children and young people being supported through early help

1,143 Children in Need suported by social workers
283 Children with a Child Protection Plan (at risk of or experiencing significant harm)
437 Children in Care
272 Care Leavers
Although crime overall is low in Dorset, domestic abuse, criminal exploitation,
and rural crime have been identified as priorities for our partner agencies and we
are increasingly worried about violence against girls and women. Some groups
in our communities are more at risk of disadvantage or exploitation. Particular
issues include county lines, child sexual exploitation and practices such as
Cuckooing. Local intelligence from young people have identified, through survey
and feedback during participation events, that they do not always feel safe in
places they frequent or in their communities.
Having the best start in life is key to avoiding poor health outcomes and health
inequalities in later life and most thrive and experience good health. However,
this is not the case for all children and there are some areas of concern.
Childhood obesity is considered one of the most serious public health challenges
of the 21st century. Obesity in childhood is associated with a higher chance of
premature death and disease such as diabetes or cardiovascular diseases in
adulthood. Although our rates are good compared to England, the prevalence
rate of obesity has been increasing. If Dorset had a population of 100 children, 9
would be classified as obese at 4-5 years and 17 at 10-11 years.
It is estimated that mental health problems affect about 1 in 10 children and
young people. Experiencing mental health issues in childhood can result in lower
educational attainment and risky health behaviours such as smoking and

Page 86

substance misuse. In Dorset, hospital admissions as a result of self-harm have
been increasing over the last few years and are higher than the national rate.
During Covid there has been an increase in requests for support for anxiety and
depression and eating disorders.
Rates of childhood admissions to hospital in Dorset are significantly worse than
national rates for some specific issues including unintentional and deliberate
injuries, A&E attendances and emergency admissions and alcohol admissions.
We provide a wide range of services to children, young people and families and
Children’s Services in Dorset have been evaluated by Ofsted as ‘good with
outstanding leadership’. The overall budget for delivery of children’s services in
2022/23 is £74.481million, an increase of 3.82% from the previous year. A key
aspect of financial strategy has been to establish budgets that reflect current and
planned demand and practice. Achieving this baseline means transformation
and tactical service change programmes can be implemented from a stable
starting position. £8.96m of additional funding is required to do this. Children’s
Services have developed an ambitious evidence-based transformation
programme to deliver £14.9m cashable savings over five years, £2.2m in
2022/23. The largest challenges facing the budget in the last year has been the
cost of care placements for children and young people and loss of trading income
from schools.
Our commissioning approaches
Commissioning is a key enabler to support and deliver sustainable change and
deliver better public services. Strategic commissioning is a mechanism to get the
best possible outcomes within resources available (ensuring best value) by
deciding how to use our resources for children, young people and parents in the
most efficient, effective, equitable and sustainable way.
Our commissioning approach is underpinned by a set of shared values and
principles set out in our children, young people and families plan, and described
below:
 Always putting children and families at the heart of everything we do
 No child or family left behind – we will strive for equity of outcomes for our
children, young people, and their families
 Focussing on early intervention and prevention aiming to help early in the
life of a problem and providing a graduated response to need – the right
help, in the right place, at the right time
 Working restoratively, doing things with families instead of to them, for
them or doing nothing
 Thinking Family and working together so that children and families receive
a joined-up response and good transitions

Page 87







Focussing on strengths within families and communities, understanding
the lived experience of children
Staying with families until outcomes are delivered, embedded and change
is sustained
Being inclusive – we want our children and young people to be able to get
the help they need in the county that is their home
Empowering young people and families to use the information we give
them to make decisions for themselves
Delivering best value for money - spending the Dorset £ in Dorset on the
things that get the best outcomes for children and families.

Because we understand that systems that exist to deliver public services are
complex, our approach to commissioning is informed by the research around
commissioning for complexity led by Newcastle University Business School. A
challenging environment but one that invites innovation and importantly requires
commissioners in local authorities to work with their counterparts in other
organisations (such as the NHS or the police), as well as with providers and
residents, to design and deliver sustainable new services that manage need and
demand across the whole system. This requires coproducing solutions with
residents, providers and partners, and sharing responsibility outside of the local
authority, for example by budget pooling with partners, or by devolving budgets
to local communities.
Our approach to commissioning is shaped
by the following methodological approaches:
• Needs assessments for specific areas of
work or population groups
• Design methodology and co-production to
problem solve
• Project management approaches to
governance and delivery
• Emerging and promising evidence used
to inform
• Outcomes based approach to measuring
impact
• Adoption of the Institute of Public Care’s
commissioning cycle (see diagram)
Transforming public procurement
The government wishes to move beyond the Transition Framework and cease
the alignment with EU procurement regulations. The intended outcome is that
public procurement processes will be simplified and aligned to key elements of

Page 88

national economic policy. The proposals were outlined in a Green Paper called
Transforming Public Procurement and further refined in the government
response to consultation on the proposals. These changes offer a number of
opportunities:
 Simplification of process and reduced overheads
 Improved digital platforms to modernise and reduce document handling
 A broader view of value for money to include strategic considerations such
as reshaping a market; social and environmental concerns and value over
the life of a contract.
The simpler routes to market proposed by the government will enable the council
to focus on shaping the market, achieving best value, and developing partnership
approaches to complex issues with a range of providers. Commissioners in
Children’s Services will work with corporate procurement colleagues to take
advantage of this to develop new approaches that will be compliant with the
future regulatory environment.
Our Commissioning priorities for 2022-2027
We have 3 key commissioning priorities for the next 5 years to support the
delivery of our vision for ensuring that children in Dorset can thrive:
1. Ensure there are sufficient, quality services for children, young people and
families through:
1.1. Ensuring sufficient local provision to meet needs
1.2. Supporting a strong and vibrant voluntary and community sector
1.3. Market development to ensure the provider market offers value for
money, person centred provision and choice
1.4. Implementing effective quality assurance processes
2. Improve outcomes for children and young people across their life-course
through:
2.1. The development of whole life commissioning approaches
2.2. Joint commissioning arrangements with partners including health and
adult services
2.3. Implementation of whole family approaches
2.4. Development of networks of support from Family Hubs
3. Continued investment in early intervention through:
3.1. Delivery of a Digital Family Offer high-quality information provision and
services that supports self-service
3.2. Implementation of Asset Based Community development approaches

Page 89

Priority 1: Ensure there are sufficient, quality services for children, young
people and families
1.1.

Ensuring sufficient local provision to meet needs

We will commission provision that meets local needs and delivers on our
statutory sufficiency responsibilities. In Years 1 and 2 this will include:











Residential children’s homes
Independent Foster Care
Supported accommodation
Accommodation for vulnerable 18 to 25-year olds
Alternative Education provision
Specialist assessments
Short breaks
Family Support
Implementation of the SEND Capital Strategy
Implementation of the Children in Care Placement Sufficiency Strategy

We will continue to develop business cases to secure investment in the
development of provision based on needs assessments and gap analysis and
participate in bidding for national transformation funding to secure additional
investment into Dorset.
1.2.

Supporting a strong and vibrant voluntary and community sector

We are committed to supporting a strong and vibrant voluntary and community
sector through the facilitation of a forum that brings together partners delivering
services to children and young people age 0 to 25 and their families.
We will share our data and information on needs and support the sector with
fundraising and the submission of funding bids, including where appropriate
match funding.
We will simplify procurement processes and use targeted grant making
opportunities, when appropriate, to support the sector to develop provision. We
will work with the voluntary and community sector to support them to develop the
capacity to fully participate in joint commissioning arrangements and local service
provision.

Page 90

1.3.

Market development to ensure the provider market offers value for money,
person centred provision and choice

It is recognised that over time, both local and national priorities and the capacity
of the market to respond to these priorities will change. As part of ongoing
performance monitoring, there will also be a need to identify the potential for
managing the market. This applies to working with private and public sector
providers to help them to understand the needs and priorities of the local context.
We share national concerns that in some sectors of care for children, there is
disproportionate profit making and quality of provision is not reflective of the price
paid. We will participate in regional and national frameworks to help to improve
our influence over the market as well as supporting the development of small
local provision. We will expect greater transparency over costs and will be
demanding in our expectations of providers to deliver good outcomes.
We will participate in regional and national sufficiency projects to develop more
provision and influence the development of new contracts that better meet our
needs.
We will stimulate the market in areas where there is a paucity of provision, for
example, home care and short breaks provision for children who are disabled.
We will support providers to consider how they can develop approaches to
receiving direct payments so that families have greater choice and control of the
support they receive.
1.4.

Implementing effective contract management and quality assurance
processes

We will adopt proportionate outcomes-based commissioning approaches across
all commissioned services and ensure that there is sufficient resource to
effectively quality assure provision.
All provision will have a lead contract manager focused on performance and
contract compliance and there will be clear processes for operational employees
and partners to share intelligence about provision and we will work with providers
to address any concerns in a timely manner.
We will ensure that we visit all commissioned provision at least once per year in
addition to contract management meetings.
We will invest in joint commissioning capacity and workforce development for
commissioners to ensure that that they are skilled and confident.

Page 91

We will invest in a ‘Young Commissioners’ programme to increase their
involvement across the commissioning cycle.
Priority 2: Improve outcomes for children and young people across their
life-course
2.1.

The development of whole life commissioning approaches

One of our major themes for transformation is the 0 to settled adulthood
programme. The programme is steered by a joint board, which is independently
chaired. The programme will work out from the better management of transitions
for young people who will require adult social care, continuing health care, or
ongoing support under the Mental Health Act. Future work will include the
development of 0-25 services for young people who are disabled or who have
mental health needs and move towards a culture where children benefit from
whole life planning and whole life commissioning rather than staged and siloed
offers – services which are defined by age or need.
2.2. Joint commissioning arrangements with partners including health and
adult services
A key driver to improving outcomes for some young people is ensuring services
are jointly commissioned to ensure that they wrap around and support them
rather than building in transitions, breaks or mismatches in offers from individual
services and agencies.
Work is progressing on joint commissioning for:
•

•

•
•

•
•
•

Dorset Care and Support framework – in partnership with adult’s services
with a particular emphasis on enabling micro-enterprises and cooperatives as part of local economic development
Speech Language and Communication Needs – this involves aligned
commissioning with all partners supporting the delivery of a single
services specification in Year 1 moving to a pooled budget in Year 2.
Emotional Health and Well Being Services
S.117 – after care for people who have been in hospital receiving
treatment for mental health. This will include the development of a pooled
budget.
Complex needs provision (avoiding inappropriate in-patient episodes)
Targeted grant making for the voluntary and community sector to support
emotional wellbeing and mental health
Implementing the Dorset Children and Young People’s mental Health
Strategy

Page 92

We will continue to seek opportunities to develop pooled budgets and integrated
commissioning arrangements over the life of this strategy including supporting
the implementation of the findings from the CCG led All-Age Autism review.
2.3.

Implementation of whole family approaches

The impact of parental issues and needs makes up a significant proportion of the
work that is undertaken by practitioners in Children’s Services and there is clear
evidence that implementation of working in a 'whole family way', supports better
outcomes for families, improves recruitment and retention of social workers; and
delivers cost reductions. The approach provides a coherent continuum of family
support from preventative to statutory intervention, enabling swift step-up and
down and continuity of multi-agency engagement, according to need. Wholefamily approaches can be key in maximising the impact of resources and
identifying opportunities to support carers, and to ease the very real risks to
health and wellbeing that caring can bring.
We will implement a new approach ‘Safeguarding Families Together’ where The
key elements of this include the embedding of specialist workers with domestic
abuse, substance misuse and mental health expertise working as a multidisciplinary team with children's social workers and the delivery of training for
these teams to operate a single practice model. This programme will deliver
planned savings of £4,500,000 over 5 years.
Additionally, we will continue to implement the national ‘Supporting Families’
(formerly known as Troubled Families) programme. This programme brings
additional investment to the council through a payment by results approach,
where we receive funding for demonstrating that we have improve outcomes for
all members of a family. This funding enables us to deliver whole family
approaches, improve partnership working and data sharing, and develop
systems of family support services. Although the 3-year national programme is
still under development, funding has been agreed for 2022/23 and we anticipate
that we will be expected to work with approximately 1,200 families over the life of
the programme.
2.4.

Development of networks of support from Family Hubs

Family Hubs will be at the heart of how we deliver our work in localities. They will
provide whole-family, universal and specialist services (including safeguarding)
for pre-birth to aged-19 (or 25 with SEND), with space for practitioners to touch
down and work with families both directly and through group work.

Page 93

Family Hubs are not just about physical places and spaces. We will support
families to access preferential digital services, so that Dorset families know
where to get the right help at the right time. This will avoid costly interventions. At
the heart of our Family Hubs will be well-designed services, that offer pathways
to families that are integrated with our partners - improving the experience and
potential outcomes.
A network of Family Hubs, embedded in communities in Dorset will:
•
•

•
•
•

Provide visible and branded spaces for families to access help and
support. Spaces that are appealing and welcoming.
Integrate council and partner service pathways, providing a joined-up and
comprehensive experience for families. Helping us to deliver the right help
at the right time.
Support families to access hybrid and digital services.
Help locality teams (and partners) to be present in and to deliver a wholefamily approach within communities.
Deliver planned savings of £2,500,000 over 5 years (£250,000 in 2022/23)
plus £1,000,000 in cost avoidance. These will be achieved through a
reduction in buildings (and the management costs of them) used by
Dorset Council, and efficiencies delivered by the integration of service
pathways.

Priority 3: Continued investment in early intervention
3.1. Delivery of a Digital Family Offer high-quality information provision and
services that supports self-service
We will create an online customer platform that:
•
•

•

•

Provides a tailored experience for families based on their needs and
circumstances.
Provide universal and specialist services directly to families from their
mobile device, giving them access to support outside of our working hours
and at their convenience. This supports us to provide the right help at the
right time.
Integrates services and information provided by partners and other trusted
sources – enabling families to feel confident they are accessing the right
support.
Increases opportunities for children and families to engage and coproduce the work we do with them, such as plans – putting them at the
heart of everything we do.

Page 94

•

•

3.2.

Improve and streamline behind the scenes business processes and tools
used by the workforce – helping staff to spend time on what is most
important.
Deliver a saving of £2,927,500 over 5-years plus £2,250,000 in noncashable, cost avoidance. Services delivered digitally are on the whole
cheaper to deliver in the long-term and can avoid costly interventions.
Implementation of Asset Based Community Development approaches

The communities we live in and the relationships we have are the primary source
of our physical and mental health – which in turn affects the kind of life we are
able to live and what part we can play in society. By investing in communities,
local authorities can focus on cultivating the conditions for people to flourish –
and, over time, reduce the demand for services at the point of crisis.
The effectiveness of this approach was demonstrated through Covid, when
residents and organisations were able to effectively come together to help and
support each other. This type of approach shows that connecting people and
creating more resident-to-resident relationships builds interdependence and
reliance on each other. Connecting people to their shared interests, and enabling
them to exchange skills and resources, helps communities identify and take
action on the issues that are most important to them and builds on strengths that
are already there.
We will invest in these approaches through community conversations facilitated
by our Local Alliance partnership groups for children; identification of community
builders and connectors; Asset Mapping and development of micro-grants to
communities and individuals to create projects that benefit the whole
neighbourhood.

Page 95

This page is intentionally left blank

People and Health Overview Committee – Forward Plan

Page 97

Description

Date of
Committee
Meeting

Requested
by

Report Author

Portfolio
Holder/s

Armed Forces
Covenant Legislation

To update members on
the current work of the
AFC officers programme
and how that ties in with
the new legislation

24 March
2022

Laura
Cornette

Laura Cornette,
Business Partner
Communities and
Partnerships

Portfolio
Holder for
Customer and
Community
Services

Safeguarding Families:
New Model

Report on the New Model
for information

24 March
2022

Theresa
Leavy

Lisa Reid, Consultant
for Quality Assurance

Education Leadership
Board

Report regarding the
Education Leadership
Board

24 March
2022

Theresa
Leavy

Children’s
Commissioning
Strategy

Report on the
Commissioning Strategy

24 March
2022

Theresa
Leavy

Strengthening Services
for Children who are
Disabled

Report on the Residential
Review

24 March
2022

Theresa
Leavy

Other
Meetings (CLT,
SLT, Cabinet
etc)

Portfolio
Holder for
Children.
Education,
Skills and
Early Help
Vik Verma, Corporate
Portfolio
Director for Education
Holder for
and Learning
Children.
Education,
Skills and
Early Help
Claire Shiels, Corporate Portfolio
Director for
Holder for
Commissioning, Quality Children.
and Partnerships
Education,
Skills and
Early Help

Cabinet – 5
April 2022

Louise Drury, Head of
Service - Children in
Care and Care Leavers

Cabinet – 5
April 2022

Portfolio
Holder for
Children.
Education,
Skills and
Early Help

Cabinet – 5
April 2022

Cabinet – 5
April 2022

Agenda Item 10

Title

Title

Description

Date of
Committee
Meeting

Requested
by

Report Author

Portfolio
Holder/s

Youth Justice Plan

To endorse the Youth
Justice Plan so that
Cabinet can recommend
its approval to Full
Council.

3 May 2022

Annual Item
David Webb

David Webb, Service
Manager, Dorset
Combined Youth
Justice Service

Portfolio
Holder for
Children.
Education,
Skills and
Early Help

Vivienne Broadhurst,
Executive Director for
People, Adult
Lesley Hutchinson,
Corporate Director for
Adult Commissioning

Portfolio
Holder for
Adult Social
Care and
Health

Ed Denham, Manager,
Education Services

Andrew Parry
- Children,
Education,
Skills and
Early Help
Ray Bryan Highways,
Travel and
Environment;

3 May 2022

Commissioning
Strategies (Adults)
(TBC)

Page 98

Home to School and
Post 16 Transport
Policies

This is statutory
requirement to consult on
the Home to School and
Post Transport policies.
These are the policies for
2022-2023 academic
year.

3 May 2022

28 June
2022
8
September
2022
27 October
2022

Ed Denham

Other
Meetings (CLT,
SLT, Cabinet
etc)
Cabinet – 17
May
Full Council –
14 July

Cabinet – 17
May

Title

Description

Date of
Committee
Meeting

Requested
by

Report Author

Portfolio
Holder/s

Other
Meetings (CLT,
SLT, Cabinet
etc)

Paul Rutter, Service
Manager for Leisure
Services

Portfolio
Holder for
Customer and
Community
Services

Cabinet

31 January
2023
21 March
2023
Potential Agenda
Items
Leisure Strategy

Autumn
2022 (TBC)

Page 99

Potential Items for Overview:
Data and Business Insights Strategy (May - TBC)
Enabling Communities Strategy (September - TBC, to comment on the draft strategy)
Adult Social Care White Paper
Levelling Up white paper
Integrated Care System

This page is intentionally left blank

The Cabinet Forward Plan - April to July 2022
(Publication date 8 March 2022)
Explanatory Note:
This Forward Plan contains future items to be considered by the Cabinet and Council. It is published 28 days before the next meeting of the Committee.
The plan includes items for the meeting including key decisions. Each item shows if it is ‘open’ to the public or to be considered in a private part of the
meeting.

Page 101

Definition of Key Decisions
Key decisions are defined in Dorset Council's Constitution as decisions of the Cabinet which are likely to -

(a) to result in the relevant local authority incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the relevant
local authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates (Thresholds - £500k); or
(b) to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area of
the relevant local authority.”
In determining the meaning of “significant” for these purposes the Council will have regard to any guidance issued by the Secretary of State in
accordance with section 9Q of the Local Government Act 2000 Act. Officers will consult with lead members to determine significance and sensitivity.
Cabinet Portfolio Holders 2021/22
Spencer Flower
Leader / Governance, Performance and Communications
Peter Wharf
Deputy Leader / Adult Social Care and Health
Gary Suttle
Finance, Commercial and Capital Strategy
Ray Bryan
Highways, Travel and Environment
Graham Carr-Jones
Housing and Community Safety
Jill Haynes
Corporate Development and Transformation
Laura Miller
Customer and Community Services
Andrew Parry
Children, Education, Skills and Early Help
Tony Ferrari
Economic Growth, Assets & Property
David Walsh
Planning

Subject / Decision

Decision Maker

Date the
Decision is
Due

Other Committee(s)
consulted and
Date of meeting(s)

Portfolio Holder

Officer Contact

April

Annual Self Evaluation of
Children's Services

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
5 Apr 2022

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
5 Apr 2022

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
5 Apr 2022

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
5 Apr 2022

People and Health Scrutiny
Committee
19 May 2022

Portfolio Holder for
Children, Education,
Skills and Early Help

Claire Shiels, Corporate
Director - Commissioning,
Quality & Partnerships
claire.shiels@dorsetcouncil.
gov.uk
Executive Director, People Children (Theresa Leavy)

Portfolio Holder for
Corporate
Development and
Transformation

Bridget Downton, Head of
Chief Executive's Office
bridget.downton@dorsetcou
ncil.gov.uk
Chief Executive (Matt
Prosser)

People
and
Health
Overview Committee
24 Mar 2022

Portfolio Holder for
Children, Education,
Skills and Early Help

Vik Verma, Interim Director
of Education and Learning
vik .verma@dorsetcc.gov.uk
Executive Director, People Children (Theresa Leavy)

People
and
Health
Overview Committee
24 Mar 2022

Portfolio Holder for
Children, Education,
Skills and Early Help

Lisa Reid, Consultant
Quality Assurance
lisa.reid@dorsetcouncil.gov.
uk
Executive Director, People Children (Theresa Leavy)

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open
To receive the annual self-evaluation
report.

Page 102

Quarter 4 Council Plan Monitoring
Report
Key Decision - No
Public Access - Open
A quarterly report on the delivery of
the council's plan
Education Leadership Board
Report
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open
Report regarding the Education
Leadership Board
Safeguarding Families: New Model
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open
To consider the report.

Subject / Decision

Commissioning Strategy

Decision Maker

Date the
Decision is
Due

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
5 Apr 2022

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
5 Apr 2022

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
5 Apr 2022

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

Yetminster and Ryme Intrinseca
Neighbourhood Plan 2017-2036

Other Committee(s)
consulted and
Date of meeting(s)
People
and
Health
Overview Committee
24 Mar 2022

Portfolio Holder

Portfolio Holder for
Children, Education,
Skills and Early Help

Claire Shiels, Corporate
Director - Commissioning,
Quality & Partnerships
claire.shiels@dorsetcouncil.
gov.uk
Executive Director, People Children (Theresa Leavy)

Portfolio Holder for
Planning

Ed Gerry, Prinicpal
Planning Policy Team
Leader
ed.gerry@dorsetcouncil.gov
.uk
Executive Director, Place
(John Sellgren)

Portfolio Holder for
Customer and
Community Services,
Portfolio Holder for
Housing and
Community Safety

John Newcombe, Service
Manager, Licensing &
Community Safety
john.newcombe@dorsetcou
ncil.gov.uk
Executive Director, Place
(John Sellgren)

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

Page 103

The item relates to the making
(adoption) of the Yetminster and
Ryme Intrinseca Neighbourhood Plan
2017-2036 subject to a favourable
result in the referendum which is due
to be held on the 22 February 2022.
Anti-social Behaviour Public Space
Protection Orders
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open
A review of the existing Anti-social
Behaviour Public Spaces Protection
Orders for Weymouth & Portland,
Dorchester, Bridport, West Bay and
Lyme Regis as well as consideration
of supplementary orders to tackle
antisocial behaviour is additional
areas as identified by the Community
Safety Team in consultation with the
Police.

Place
and
Resources
Overview Committee

Officer Contact

Subject / Decision

Lyme Regis Environmental
Improvements Phase Five - The
Cobb Protection

Decision Maker

Date the
Decision is
Due

Other Committee(s)
consulted and
Date of meeting(s)

Portfolio Holder

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
5 Apr 2022

Portfolio Holder for
Highways, Travel and
Environment, Portfolio
Holder for Economic
Growth, Assets and
Property

Matthew Penny, Leader
Manager - - Flood &
Coastal Erosion Risk
Management (FCERM)
matthew.penny@dorsetcou
ncil.gov.uk
Executive Director, Place
(John Sellgren)

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
5 Apr 2022

Portfolio Holder for
Corporate
Development and
Transformation,
Portfolio Holder for
Economic Growth,
Assets and Property

Deborah Smart, Corporate
Director – Digital & Change
deborah.smart@dorsetcoun
cil.gov.uk , Dugald Lock hart,
Senior Project Manager
dugald.lock hart@dorsetcou
ncil.gov.uk
Executive Director,
Corporate Development Section 151 Officer (Aidan
Dunn)

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

Page 104

To seek approval to submit an
Environment Agency Outline
Business Case developed in
partnership with a specialist Flood
Risk Engineering consultant to apply
for a Flood Defence Grant.
Delegation of authority to agree
Wayleave access for
telecommunications services
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open
Seeking Cabinet delegated authority
for the portfolio holder of Corporate
Development and change, in
consultation with Portfolio Holder for
Economic Growth, Assets and
Property, to enter into (wayleave)
agreements with telecommunications
providers requesting grant of access
to council owned buildings and land
(excluding highways) for the purpose
of delivering state funded broadband
provision within Dorset.

Officer Contact

Subject / Decision

Strengthening Services for
Children who are disabled

Decision Maker

Date the
Decision is
Due

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
5 Apr 2022

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Other Committee(s)
consulted and
Date of meeting(s)
People
and
Health
Overview Committee
24 Mar 2022

Portfolio Holder

Officer Contact

Portfolio Holder for
Children, Education,
Skills and Early Help

Louise Drury, Head of
Service Children in Care
and Care Leavers
louise.drury@dorsetcouncil.
gov.uk
Executive Director, People Children (Theresa Leavy)

Decision Date
17 May 2022

Portfolio Holder for
Customer and
Community Services

Lisa Cotton, Head of
Customer Services,
Libraries & Archives
lisa.cotton@dorsetcouncil.g
ov.uk
Executive Director, Place
(John Sellgren), Corporate
Director, Legal and
Democratic Services Monitoring Officer
(Jonathan Mair)

Decision Date
17 May 2022

Portfolio Holder for
Corporate
Development and
Transformation,
Portfolio Holder for
Highways, Travel and
Environment

Ed Denham, School
Admissions Manager
ed.denham@dorsetcouncil.
gov.uk
Executive Director, People Children (Theresa Leavy)

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Fully exempt
To consider the report.
May

Revised Inter Authority Agreement
for Joint Archives Service

Page 105

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open
The item is subject to internal
governance at BCP Council and may
be delayed if unable to progress in
time for cut off dates at Dorset
Council.
Home to School and Post 16
Transport Policies
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open
This is statutory requirement to
consult on the Home to School and
Post Transport policies. These are
the policies for 2022-2023 academic
year.

Subject / Decision

Youth Justice Plan

Decision Maker

Date the
Decision is
Due

Decision Maker
Dorset Council

Decision Date
14 Jul 2022

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Other Committee(s)
consulted and
Date of meeting(s)

Officer Contact

Portfolio Holder for
Children, Education,
Skills and Early Help

David Webb, Manager Dorset Combined Youth
Justice Service
david.webb@bcpcouncil.go
v.uk
Executive Director, People Children (Theresa Leavy)

Decision Date
21 Jun 2022

Portfolio Holder for
Finance, Commercial
and Capital Strategy

Jim McManus, Corporate
Director - Finance and
Commercial
J.McManus@dorsetcc.gov.
uk
Executive Director,
Corporate Development Section 151 Officer (Aidan
Dunn)

Decision Date
21 Jun 2022

Deputy Leader and
Portfolio Holder for
Adult Social Care and
Health

Steve Veevers, Corporate
Director Operations, Adult
Care
steve.veevers@dorsetcoun
cil.gov.uk
Executive Director, People Adults

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

Cabinet
People
and
Health
Overview Committee
17 May 2022
3 May 2022

Portfolio Holder

To approve the Youth Justice Plan.
June

Page 106

Finance report - outturn 2021/2022
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open
To consider the Council’s
performance against its revenue
budget in 2021/22 and the impact this
has upon reserves, including the
general fund.
Adult Social Care - Future Services
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Fully exempt
Options for future Adult Social Care
Services
July

Subject / Decision

Quarter 1 Council Plan Monitoring
Report

Decision Maker

Date the
Decision is
Due

Portfolio Holder

Officer Contact

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
26 Jul 2022

Portfolio Holder for
Corporate
Development and
Transformation

Rebecca Forrester,
Business Intelligence &
Performance
rebecca.forrester@dorsetco
uncil.gov.uk
Chief Executive (Matt
Prosser)

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
26 Jul 2022

Portfolio Holder for
Finance, Commercial
and Capital Strategy

Jim McManus, Corporate
Director - Finance and
Commercial
J.McManus@dorsetcc.gov.
uk
Executive Director,
Corporate Development Section 151 Officer (Aidan
Dunn)

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
1 Nov 2022

Portfolio Holder for
Finance, Commercial
and Capital Strategy

Jim McManus, Corporate
Director - Finance and
Commercial
J.McManus@dorsetcc.gov.
uk
Executive Director,
Corporate Development Section 151 Officer (Aidan
Dunn)

Key Decision - No
Public Access - Open
A quarterly report on the delivery of
the council's plan
Quarter 1 2022/23 Financial
Monitoring Report

Other Committee(s)
consulted and
Date of meeting(s)

Page 107

Key Decision - No
Public Access - Open
To consider the Quarter 2 Financial
Monitoring Report 2022/23.

September

October

November

Quarter 2 2022/23 Financial
Monitoring Report
Key Decision - No
Public Access - Open
To consider the Quarter 2 Financial
Monitoring Report for 2022/23.

Subject / Decision

Decision Maker

Date the
Decision is
Due

Other Committee(s)
consulted and
Date of meeting(s)

Portfolio Holder

Officer Contact

December

Quarter 3 2022/23 Financial
Monitoring Report
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open
To consider the Quarter 3 Financial
Monitoring Report for 2022/23.

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
17 Jan 2023

Portfolio Holder for
Finance, Commercial
and Capital Strategy

Page 108

Jim McManus, Corporate
Director - Finance and
Commercial
J.McManus@dorsetcc.gov.
uk
Executive Director,
Corporate Development Section 151 Officer (Aidan
Dunn)

Private/Exempt Items for Decision
Each item in the plan above marked as ‘private’ will refer to one of the following paragraphs.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

7.

Information relating to any individual.
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information).
Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the authority.
Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings.
Information which reveals that the shadow council proposes:(a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a person; or
(b) to make an order or direction under any enactment.
Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime.

Page 109
9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 111

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 117

This page is intentionally left blank

